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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Legend Strategy International
Holdings Group Company Limited, | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group was principally engaged in the budget hotel
operations. Under various adverse effects imposed by markets and
policies, the hotel operations still failed to achieve their breakeven points
in 2015. In addition, with intensifying competition in hospitality market,
the Group recorded a net loss of approximately HK$123,836,000 for
the Year, which was mainly due to the increase of operating expenses
in 2015. The impairment losses of property, plant and equipment,
construction in progress, prepayments and other receivables, trade
receivables and share of results of joint ventures was another factor
accountable for the widened losses during 2015.

However, year 2015 was of importance to the Group. In order to
cope with the tough operating environment and bring improvements
to the value of the Company as well as the return to investors, new
management was introduced to the Group. The Group wished the
new management would bring the Group with new standpoints and
directions by utilizing their diversified background and experience to
continuously seek and develop those favorable projects under the
unfavorable conditions of the PRC and even the world. During the year,
the Group cooperated with a local television production company for the
first time to invest and shoot a television play, which will be premiered in
the middle of 2016. Such investment, though at a relatively small size,
would represent an attempt for the Group to tap into other business
opportunities.

PROSPECTS

The new management will cautiously estimate the budget hotel
development projects in which preliminary investments have been made.
Future developments of such projects will be determined by taking into
consideration of the currently best interests of the Group, with a focus
on balancing future investments and returns. The hotels which no longer
bring the Group with benefits will need to be disposed appropriately.

The management has been and will continually keep assessing the
existing development projects and will update the shareholders and the
public accordingly.

At all events, the coming year, especially the first half of it, will still be of
difficulty for current hotel business. The foreseeable profit of hotels shall
make no significant improvement. The loss on current operation of hotels
is expected to last for a certain time under the pressure of increase in
cost.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

Therefore, the management will reallocate resources and make efforts
to improve the operation of the three existing hotels, with an aim to
minimize their losses. At the same time we will also look for investment
opportunities and explore new hotel business in the PRC, Hong Kong or
overseas, so as to optimize the overall hotel assets structure, improve
efficiency and get rid of the drag brought by existing hotel business.

In addition, the board of directors will protocol a business framework
that suits for the Group’s future development in long term. Apart from the
hotel business, we may also allocate certain resources to other business
step by step to lay a foundation for future development, in order to
achieve breakthroughs in the long-term depression of budget hotel
business and eventually bring returns to shareholders.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Finally, the Board would like to thank all the staff for their valuable
contribution to the Group. At the same time, | would like to thank all
shareholders, investors and public stakeholders heartily for their full
supports to the Group. We are willing to continue to work together with
shareholders, striving to pursue outstanding value and creating a better
future.

Huang Yun
Executive Director
On Behalf of the Board

18 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREHNWR DM

CHANGE OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

On 4 June 2015, China Medical Overseas Limited (“China Medical”)
and the Company jointly announced that China Medical entered
into a share purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) with Mr. Fong
Man Kelvin to purchase an aggregate of 102,576,466 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 32.66% of the then total issued
shares of the Company at that time, for a total cash consideration of
HK$156,941,992.98 (equivalent to HK$1.53 per share).

Subsequently, following the exercise of 750,000 share options under the
share option scheme adopted in 2011 by two option holders in June
2015, the Company placed and issued 750,000 new shares. After that,
the 102,576,466 shares previously acquired by China Medical were
diluted to approximately 32.58% of the then total issued share capital of
the Company at that time.

In June 2015, pursuant to Rule 26.1 of the Takeovers Code, China
Medical was required to make a mandatory unconditional cash offer (the
“Offer”) to acquire all the issued shares of the Company at an offer price
of HK$1.53 per offer share.

The Offer was closed in July 2015, whereby China Medical received a
total of 58,626,000 offer shares, representing approximately 18.62%
of the then entire issued share capital of the Company at that time.
Together with the shares previously purchased from Mr. Fong Man
Kelvin, China Medical had acquired a total of 161,202,466 shares,
representing approximately 51.20% of the then entire issued share
capital of the Company at that time.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has 3
leased-and-operated hotels under operation.

Revenue from hotel operations included income from sales of hotel
rooms and hotel membership cards. Revenue was HK$19,884,379 for
the financial year ended 31 December 2015, representing a decrease
of 33.1% as compared with revenue of HK$29,700,841 for the same
period of the last financial year. Other than a decrease in income from
sales of hotel rooms, decrease in revenue was also due to the cessation
of the provision of hotel management services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREHNWR DM

For the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the average room
revenue (“ARR”) of all hotels was RMB174.3 compared with RMB171.9
for the same period of last financial year, representing a very slight
increase of approximately 1.41%. But the average occupancy rate of all
hotels had decreased from 90.55% for the same period of last financial
year to 79.32% for the financial year ended 31 December 2015. At the
same time, the revenue per available room (“RevPAR”) for the financial
year for the year ended 31 December 2015 was RMB138.3 compared
to RMB155.7 for last financial year, representing a decrease of 11.18%,
mainly due to the slowdown of economic condition and increasing
competition in hospitality industry in the PRC.

HOTELS UNDER OPERATION
Nanshan Hotel

As the flagship hotel of the Group, Nanshan Hotel is located at Nanshan
Road, Shenzhen with 192 rooms. Nanshan Hotel has made significant
contributions to the Group in the past. However, due to the impact of
construction of railway infrastructure nearby, its revenue has decreased
substantially. In respect of the costs, the new lease agreement became
effective during the year with the rental up by approximately 40%.
Therefore, the expense increased remarkably, leading to an increase in
loss.

Luohu Hotel

Luohu Hotel is located at the thriving financial center of Luohu District
in Shenzhen, which enjoys convenient transport access (only about
5 minutes’ driving distance to Luohu Checkpoint and Convention and
Exhibition Center), and occupies the high traffic location in Shenzhen.
However, as the revenue of Luohu Hotel is partly generated from
domestic travellers making short trips to Hong Kong, the implementation
of one-visit-one-week policy by the Hong Kong Government has cast
adverse impact on Luohu Hotel, turning from profit into a loss.

Baoan Hotel

Baoan Hotel is located in Baoan District of Shenzhen, which, on a
geographical and environmental basis, situates at a less prime location.
In recent years, it was significantly impacted by the slowdown of
economic condition and increasing competition in hospitality industry
in local area. The average occupancy rate decreased significantly as
compared with the last financial year, leading to an increase in loss.
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JOINT VENTURE HOTELS
Sanya Waterfront Hotel and Sanya Jinhua Hotel

The Group owns two joint venture companies which the Group holds
60% in each of them. Each of the joint venture companies establishes
a wholly-owned subsidiary named Welcomeinn Sanya Waterfront Hotel
and Welcomeinn Sanya Jinhua Hotel, respectively to conduct the
business of hotel operation in Sanya, the PRC.

For the past years, both the Sanya Waterfront Hotel and Sanya Jinhua
Hotel recorded net losses. Moreover, the operation of these hotels
faced much challenge as the popularity of Sanya in domestic tourists
is dropping. Therefore, the management has made full provision for the
investment and loans to these two Sanya hotels during the year, and
in view of the best interests of the shareholders as a whole, the Group
has suspended further investments in them and will consider exiting or
selling these joint venture companies.

HOTELS UNDER CONSTRUCTION
Xiachong Hotel and Changping Hotel

The management has decided to cease the investment in Xiachong
Hotel (located in Daya Bay District, Huizhou City) and Changping Hotel
(located in Changping District, Dongguan City). It was mainly due to
the concerns that they would be exposed to enormous risk to invest
in new hotels as the surge in supply of budget hotels in the PRC has
led to a saturated market, while the demand is depressed due to
the slowdown economy. Furthermore, it also requires considerable
additional investment to commence the operation of a new hotel. Given
that it is not in the best interest of the shareholders to continue investing
in these two new hotels, the new management has decided to cease
the planning of these hotels and make full provision for the preliminary
investment in such hotels, and terminate the leasing agreements with
the landlords, so as to reduce the risk exposure of the Group.

Huizhou Hotel and Buji Hotel

The geographical location and environment of Buji Hotel (located in
Buiji, Longgang District, Shenzhen City) and Huizhou Hotel (located in
Huicheng District, Huizhou City) are slightly superior to the said hotels in
Xiachong and Changping. The new management is conducting further
assessment on their contributions and value to the Group to determine
their development direction.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREHNWR DM

Yuexiu Hotel

The Group had decided to develop a budget hotel in major city in
the PRC to avoid the effect brought by uncertainty of economy in the
local area. Given the uncertainty of the local economic condition and
increasing competition in hotel industry, with a view to reducing risk, the
Group has terminated the development project of Yuexiu Hotel (located
in YueXiu District, Guangzhou).

PROVISION OF HOTEL MANAGEMENT SERVICE
Daimeisha Hotel and Fushan Hotel

In prior years, the Group has provided hotel management service to
these two hotels. Since the hotels’ operation has become stable, hotel
management service for these hotels was no longer required during the
year.

HOTEL CONSULTANCY SERVICE

For the year ended 31 December 2015, no revenue was generated
from the provision of hotel consultancy service. As the hotel consultancy
business in the PRC faces a grim prospect, the management has
decided that the Group will suspend the business of hotel consultancy
service and reallocate the resources to management of existing hotels as
well as development of other businesses.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group has recorded a net loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$123,836,000 for the year ended
31 December 2015, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately HK$72,293,000 or 140.3% compared to the net loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$51,543,000
for year ended 31 December 2014.

The net loss for the year was mainly due to the decrease of revenues
generated from the provision of hotel rooms and management service in
2015. Also, the increase of operating expenses and impairment loss in
property, plant and equipment, construction in progress, prepayments
and other receivables, trade receivables and share result of joint ventures
cause an increase in loss for the year 2015.
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The Group reported a total revenue of approximately HK$19,884,000
(2014: approximately HK$29,701,000) and recorded a year-on-year
decrease of approximately HK$9,817,000 or 33.1% from the last year.
Revenue was mainly generated from hotel operations of approximately
HK$19,884,000 (2014: approximately HK$29,701,000), representing
100% (2014: 100%) of total revenue. The following table shows the key
information of the Group’s leased-and-operated hotels for the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014:

REESS AU EE4719,884,000F T (—ZF—MW
F 1 4929,701,000870) * B EFEZRFERDL
9,817,000/ 7T + JRilE & 33.1%  WamE ZIRMN
S S 2 IE 49 519,884,000 87T (ZE—IU4E « 4
29,701,000 7L) * 18K A100% (= Z —
F:100%) ° TREFIAEBHE-_T—RF
M _ZE-ME+_A=+—HIFEHERE
BEZ FEZER

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1+—HLHFE

2015 2014 % change
— ik AL EE)

Total st
Total available room nights an] HAARE M E 111,322 100,006 11.31%
Average occupancy rate T AFEE 79.32% 90.55% (12.40%)
ARR (RMB)* FHEHE(ARE)” 174.3 171.9 1.41%
RevPAR (RMB)* FHEREERA(ARE)! 138.3 155.7 11.18%

ARR: the total room revenue of all hotels divided by the total occupied
room nights

# RevPAR: the total room revenue of all hotels divided by the total available
room nights

Operating Costs

The total operating costs increased by HK$64,422,771, or approximately
91.4%, from HK$70,460,775 for the last year to HK$134,883,546 for
the year ended 31 December 2015. The increase of operating expenses
are mainly due to: i) write off of construction in progress due to the
termination of development of two hotels for HK$27,365,278; ii) write
off of property, plant and equipment of HK$14,143,961; and iii) write
off of HK$31,305,911 of trade receivables, prepayments and other
receivables, during the year of 2015. The following table shows the total
operating costs for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014:

. FHEHE : AEENETERARAEAGE

EERH

¢ PHEEMERERA  MABENAERRAR
AR AT ARG

R R

HE-Z—RAF+-_A=+—HULEEE &
K&K AN R EFE #970,460,7757%8 T E F
64,422,771 78 JL & 134,883,546 /5 JT * FH 18 &)
BO4%  EERZMEZHRA - —Hh
FO)VAKEERMEEEMMEERE TR
27,365,278 L VM BE M E - BE K& E
14,143,961 78 70 + Miii) M S8 FE URBR 58« TR 3R
N EH b E Y FRIE31,305,911 Bt BHE-F
—hRFERZE—NUFF+_A=+—HILEFEHN
MRACE P ARER BN ¢

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1t—HLHFE

2015 2014 % change

—¥-EF -T-NF  EHHED

Operating lease expenses LEHERY 17,057,985 17,974,662 (5.1%)
Depreciation of property, YE - RENEEITE

plant and equipment 4,691,183 7,255,616 (35.3%)

Employee benefit expenses EERAMFAX 14,050,367 13,153,151 6.8%

Utilities NAREE 2,063,031 1,857,458 11.07%

Other operating expenses E At i 97,020,980 30,219,888 221.1%

134,883,546 70,460,775 91.4%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$47,612,000 (2014: approximately HK$2,322,000).
Gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt
is calculated as total borrowings (including “current and non-current
borrowings” as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position)
less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “equity” as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position plus net debt.
The gearing ratio for the year ended 31 December 2015 is nil (2014: nil).

The Group was in net cash position as at 31 December 2015.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO FINANCIAL
POSITION

The debtors’ turnover days for the financial year ended 31 December
2015 was 5 days (2014: 94 days). It decreased by 89 days as a result of
writing-off of non-performing trade receivables during the year.

For hotel operations, the majority of the customers of the Group pay
by cash or credit card upon hotel room check in. As a result, the trade
receivables balance was immaterial compared with the revenue. The
Group expects the customer payment pattern to be consistent in the
future.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

In January and October 2015, the Company issued and allotted a total
of 52,300,000 and 78,704,999 new ordinary shares at placing price of
HK$0.66 and HK$0.80 each, respectively. In addition, on 9 June 2015,
the company issued 750,000 shares pursuant to exercise of options
under the Share Option Scheme adopted on 22 June 2011.

Save for the placement and issue of new ordinary shares, there was
no material change in the capital structure of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2015. The total number of the issued shares
of the Company was 393,525,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014
261,770,001).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Majority of the assets and liabilities of the Group were denominated in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. As at 31 December 2015, the Group
had no significant exposure under foreign exchange contracts, interest,
currency swaps or other financial derivatives.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2015, other than those investments
in production of TV drama series, there was no significant investment
made by the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, there were no material
acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies by the
Group.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any charges on its
assets (2014: nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the total capital commitments of the Group
were approximately HK$1,440,000, which primarily related to the
investment in production of TV drama series (2014: approximately
HK$2,950,000, which primarily related to the development and
construction of new leased-and-operated hotels in the PRC). As at
31 December 2015, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (2014 nil).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total operating lease
commitments of approximately HK$76,082,000 (2014: HK$108,420,000).
The operating lease commitments are mainly related to the rental of hotels
premises for hotel operations and head office.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had 86 employees (2014: 126) as at 31 December 2015.
The Group’s remuneration practices are in line with the prevailing market
practice and are determined on the basis of performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS IN FUND RAISING
ACTIVITIES

On 22 December 2014, the Company entered into the Placing
Agreement with the Emperor Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”),
pursuant to which the Placing Agent has conditionally agreed to
procure, on a best effort basis, not less than six independent placees to
subscribe in cash for the shares with the placing price at HK$0.66 per
share (the “Placing”). The Placing was completed on 9 January 2015.
The proceeds raised would be applied as general working capital and
repayment of liabilities of the Group.

The following is a summary of the use of proceeds for the amount of
HK$33,900,000 after the placing of the shares.

BMETBMEREFHE AR

R-ZE—NE+-_A-+=-H AAFHEES
BHEEB)ARAR(EERE DI LES
e Bl RERBEBRGRAEREHEE
{REN DR INZ B AT AR &R SRR
0668 T2 i EEBREA M ([EEEEIE]) - i
EFTHORN_ZT—RF—ANB=EK - TES

FTEBAE—REEES REELAEEEE -

AR BB &M% (7 18 P15 5} 78 33,900,000 78 7T 2
REHME -

2015

—E-EF

HK$

BT

Repayment of liabilities BeaE 7,400,000
General working capital —REEES 26,500,000
Total Bt 33,900,000

In addition, on 28 August 2015, the Company entered into the
underwriting agreement with Sheng Yuan Securities Limited (
the”Underwriter”), pursuant to which the Underwriter agreed to
underwrite the Offer Shares, being not less than 38,404,383 shares
and not more than 39,829,383 shares according to the terms of
the underwriting agreement. The underwriting was completed on
16 October 2015 with the subscription price at HK$0.80 per share in
cash. The proceeds raised would be applied as investment funds and
general working capital of the Group.

The following is a summary of the use of proceeds for the amount of
HK$63,000,000 after the placing of the shares.

S RZE—RFNAZ+/\B - ARQFH
BRFEHBRAR([BHEE] L BHE R
Bl REERAERREHEBZR KRB HEE
A~ 1A 38,404,383 ik % 17 & 1A 38 39,829,383
fER%D - BEEEER S —AF+A+<H
LATR £ SRR AR 17 0.80 B T 2 RIBETTK ° AT
ERFEBREASENKREZSES N —RK
EBES -

LA A B & M7 1% BT 1§ K38 63,000,000 78 7T 2
REHME -

2015

—E-RHE

HK$

BT

General working capital —REEES 14,000,000
Investing activities "EES 1,440,000
Cash Be 47,560,000
Total st 63,000,000
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OUTLOOK

Going forward, the Group shall slowdown the size or number of existing
leased-and-operated hotels, and balance the risk and reward in hotel
investment in the PRC. Moreover, the management will re-evaluate
the existing hotels and investments in the future, and thus determine
the future strategies of the hotels to reduce further losses. In addition,
the Group will focus on minimizing the cost and maximum the profit in
hotel operation, in order to diversify the risk and create returns for our
shareholders, the Group will also seek for more business opportunities in
different segments in the coming years.

UPDATE ON LITIGATION

On 8 January 2016 the Company received a writ of summons endorsed
with a statement of claim (the “Statement of Claim”) dated 8 January
2016 (the “Writ”) issued by Fu Tat Credit Limited (the “Plaintiff’) as
plaintiff in the High Court of the Court of First Instance of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region, with Mr. Fong Man Kelvin (“Mr. Fong”)
named as the 1st defendant and the Company as the 2nd defendant
(subsequently becoming the fifth defendant pursuant to an amended
Writ of Summons), in respect of an alleged loan arrangement made
between the Plaintiff, Mr. Fong and the Company on 6 October 2014. At
the relevant time, Mr. Fong was the controlling shareholder (as defined in
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”)), the chairman and executive director of the Company.
Mr. Fong disposed of all his interest in the Company on or about
29 May 2015 and resigned as the chairman, executive director,
authorised representative and compliance officer of the Company on
27 July 2015. Mr. Fong, however, has remained as a director of two joint
ventures of the Company.

It was stated in the Statement of Claim that the Plaintiff, as a licensed
money lender under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the
laws of Hong Kong), had entered into a loan agreement with Mr. Fong
as the borrower and the Company as the guarantor on 6 October 2014
in respect of a sum of HK$3,500,000 (the “Loan”). Under the Statement
of Claim, the Plaintiff claims against Mr. Fong and the Company for: (1) a
sum of HK$2,092,871.02; (2) further interest accrued on the outstanding
loan principal of HK$1,961,932.21 at the rate of 42% per annum from
6 January 2016 until payment in full; (3) further or other relief; and (4)
costs of the proceedings on full indemnity basis.
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As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 12 January 2016,
the Company denies and disputes the allegations made by the Plaintiff
against the Company in the Statement of Claim. The Company has
never authorised the provision of the alleged guarantee to the Plaintiff or
anyone over the Loan nor has the Company ever passed any resolution
to authorise the provision of the alleged guarantee over the Loan
allegedly advanced by the Plaintiff to Mr. Fong.

In respect of the above mentioned lawsuit, the Group has engaged
external legal advisor for further legal procedures. The case is in litigation
procedure currently. The management will continue to monitor the event
and will make further announcements at due time to provide latest
updates on the litigation to investors of the Group.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Company is committed to ensuring a high standard of corporate
governance in the interests of the shareholders and devotes considerable
effort to maintain high level of business ethics and corporate governance
practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) throughout the year,
except for certain deviations as specified with considered reasons for
such deviations as explained below. The Board will keep reviewing and
updating such practices from time to time to ensure compliance with
legal and commercial standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating strategies, monitoring
performance and managing risks of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”). At the same time, it also has the duty to
enhance the effectiveness of the corporate governance practices of the
Group. Under the Board, there are 3 board committees, namely the
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee.
All these committees perform their distinct roles in accordance with their
respective terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising certain
functions of the senior management.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings. The Company had made specific enquiry to all the
directors (the “Directors”) and the Directors have confirmed compliance
with this code of conduct throughout the period from 1 January 2015 to
31 December 2015. No incident of non-compliance was noted by the
Company during this period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At present, the Board of the Company comprises five Directors as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Yun (Appointed on 25 June 2015)
Mr. Law Fei Shing

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco (Appointed on 25 June 2015)
Mr. Leung Siu Hong (Appointed on 25 June 2015)

Mr. Chung Wai Man (Appointed on 25 June 2015)

List of directors and their role and function are available on the websites
of Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”). Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section of “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 32 to 36. There are no family or other material relationships
among members of the Board.

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance, and considering and approving the overall
strategies and policies of the Company. Apart from the regular board
meetings of the year, the Board also meets on other occasions when a
Board-level decision on a particular matter is required.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, management provides all
members of the board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail.

According to code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code, a notice of at least
14 days should be given for a regular board meeting to give all directors
an opportunity to attend. Due to the practical scheduling issues, a
shorter reasonable notice was given to the Directors for a certain number
of the meetings held in 2015.

Meanwhile, according to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, it is
encouraged that all directors (not just Independent non-executive
Directors and non-executive Directors) to attend general meetings. At
the said meeting, all the independent non-executive Directors were
presented to enable the Board to develop a balanced understanding
of the views of the shareholders of the Company, except, due to other
business commitments, Mr. Frostick Stephen William who was unable to
attend the Annual General Meeting and Mr. Huang Yun who was unable
to attend several board meetings.
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The Company will arrange to furnish all Directors with appropriate
information on all general meetings and take all reasonable measures
to arrange the schedule that all Directors can attend the general
meetings in order to develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders.

The Board will continue to review the corporate governance status of the
Company from time to time and make any necessary changes to comply
with the CG Code.

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings, Audit
Committee meetings, Remuneration Committee meeting, Nomination
Committee meeting and general meetings during the year ended 31
December 2015 is set out in the following table:
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Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee General
Name of directors Board Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ESpg EZe83  BNZEEe8E  FMzZEe8E  RYzegss REAE
(attendance/total no.  (attendance/total no.  (attendance/total no.  (attendance/total no.  (attendance/total no.
of meetingsHeld) ~ of meetingsHeld) ~ of meetings Held) ~ of meetings Held) of meetings Held)
(HiERE/ (LRA%/ (HiEA%/ (RS (HifERE/
BUeZERE)  BAEALRR)  BAesERE)  BAERENR)  Bhessend)
Executive Directors HiEE
M. Huang Yun BERE
(appointed on 25 June 2015 (R=Z-2F~A-TRBEZA) 15 NATER NATER NATER NANER
Mr, Law Fei Shing b 1012 NATER NATEFR NATNER 17
W Fong Man Keivin Xk
(resigned on 27 July 2015 (R=Z-nFLA-TLAEA) 6/ NATEFR NATEFR NATER 11
Ms. Fong Nga BERTL
(resigned on 27 July 2015 (R=T-1F tAZTCRER) 6/8 NAMER NANER NANER 11
Mr. Mek Yiu Cho Rigits
(resigned on 27 July 2015) (R=Z-2F tA=TLRBHI) 6/8 NATEE NATEE NATEE 11
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BU#&77ZZ
M. Tso Hon Sai Bosco EsEna
(appointed on 25 June 2015 (R=F-RERAZTHREEA) 45 " 22 2 NANER
M. Leung Siu Hong PRERE
(appointed on 25 June 2015 (R=Z-1F AA-THAEEA) 55 n 22 2 NANER
M. Chung Wai Man ek
(appointed on 25 June 2015 (R=Z-1F AA-THPEEA) 55 " 22 2 NANER
M. Wong Hak Kun Jery ERYET
(resigned on 27 July 2015 (R=F-1F tAZTCRER) 718 Vi 0 0/ 11
M. Wong Sui Chi Frankie iy
(resigned on 27 July 2015) (R=T-1F tAZTCRER) 18 1 1 1 10
W Liu Cheng Zhong HFREL
(resigned on 27 July 2015) W=F-1F tA=++REM 858 11 1 1 11
Mr. Frostick Stephen William Frostick Stephen Willam 2
(resigned on 27 July 2015 P=Z-1F tAZTHASHM) 58 n 1 11 0/
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All Directors are provided with details of agenda items for decisions
making with reasonable notice and welcome to include matters in the
agenda of Board Meeting. Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring
that the Board procedures are complied with and advising the Board
on compliance matters. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of
the Board committees are kept by the company secretory and are
opened for inspection as request by the Directors. During the year, the
Board was given sufficient time to review and approve the minutes of
Board meetings and meetings of Board Committees. The Directors
are also provided with access to independent professional advice,
where necessary, in carrying out their obligations as the Directors of
the Company, at the expense of the Company. Directors who are
considered to have conflict of interests or material interests in the
proposed transactions or issues to be discussed would not be counted
in the quorum of meeting and would abstain from voting on the relevant
resolution.

All Directors assume the responsibilities to the shareholders of the
Company for the well-being and success of the Company. They are
aware of their duties to act in good faith and in the best interests of the
Company.

The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting records so
as to enable the Directors to monitor the Company’s overall financial
position. The Board updates shareholders on the operations and
financial position of the Group through, half yearly and annual results
announcements as well as the publication of timely announcements of
other matters as prescribed by the relevant rules and regulations.

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors, at
least one of whom has appropriate financial management expertise,
in compliance with the Listing Rules. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors has made an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

According to the Company’s articles of association, newly appointed
Directors shall hold office until the next following general meeting and
shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

During the year, the Company had arranged appropriate insurance cover
in respect of legal action against the Directors.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision of A.2.1. of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and should not
be performed by the same individual. The roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separated to ensure a clear division between
the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer’s responsibility to manage the Company’s business.
The separation ensures a balance of power and authority so that power
is not concentrated.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company did not have
a chief executive officer. The chief executive officer’s duties have been
undertaken by the members of the Board.

Subsequent to the resignation from Mr. Fong Man Kelvin as the
Chairman of the Board on 27 July 2015 and up to the date hereof, no
individual was appointed as the chairman of the Company. The role of
the chairman has been performed collectively by all executive Directors
of the Company.

The Board considers this arrangement allows contributions from all
Directors with different expertise and is beneficial to the continuity and
implementation of the Company’s policy and strategies and in the
interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Nevertheless, the Company will continue to look for suitable candidates
and will make necessary arrangement pursuant to the requirement under
A.2.1 of the CG Code as and when necessary.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all the non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a specific term of one year
but subject to termination in certain circumstance as stipulated in the
relevant service contracts. At each annual general meeting, one third
of the Directors for the time being (if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third) will retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.
Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting of members after his appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed as an addition
to the existing board shall hold office only until the next annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties
and has adopted the written terms of reference on its corporate
governance functions. The duties of the Board in respect of the
corporate governance functions include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(iiy  reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

(v)  reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Since 2015 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed
the corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of
reference.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. The Company considered diversity of board members can
be achieved through consideration of a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and contributions
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee was set up on 22 June 2011 (the
“Remuneration Committee”) to oversee the remuneration policy
and structure for all Directors and senior management. The terms of
reference is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and the senior management and determining
the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible to ensure that no
Director or any of his associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions. Members are provided with sufficient resources, including
but not limited to, the access to independent professional advice,
where necessary, in carrying out their obligations, at the expense of the
Company.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2015. The members reviewed the remuneration
package of the Directors and the senior managements, assessing
performance of executive Directors, approving the terms of executive
Directors’ service contracts and making recommendations to the Board
as the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members as at the date
of this report namely:

Mr. Chung Wai Man (Appointed on 27 July 2015) (Chairman)
Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco (Appointed on 27 July 2015)

Mr. Leung Siu Hong (Appointed on 27 July 2015)

Mr. Wong Sui Chi (Resigned on 27 July 2015)

Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry (Resigned on 27 July 2015)

Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong (Resigned on 27 July 2015)
Mr. Frostick Stephen William (Resigned on 27 July 2015)

All of the current members are independent non-executive Directors.
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In addition, pursuant to the Code Provision B.1.5, the annual
remuneration of the member of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2015 is set out below:

AN - RIBFRGXEBASE - BRERENK
BEBE_ZT—AFT_A=1T—HLEFEZF
M H NS EEIIT -

2015 2014

—E-0F —ZE—OF

Number of Number of

persons persons

AE AH

HK$NIl to HK$1,000,000 =% 70%1,000,00078 7T 8 6

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee on 22 June
2011 (the “Nomination Committee”) for making recommendations to
the Board on appointment of the Directors and succession planning of
the Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of the Directors, and assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
reviewing the Board Diversity Policy. Members are provided with access
to independent professional advice, where necessary, in carrying their
obligations at the expense of the Company.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2015, the Nomination
Committee held three meetings. The members reviewed the current
composition of the Board and discussed about the Board restructure
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company
pursuant to its terms of reference (available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange) and the Board Diversity Policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company appointed
one executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Huang Yun, Mr. Chung Wai Man, Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco
and Mr. Leung Siu Hong, respectively. The Nomination Committee has
reviewed the appointed Directors’ background, including but not limited
to independence, gender, age, cultural and education background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. The Nomination
Committee considered current Board Composition has achieved the
objectives of the Board Diversity Policy.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Huang
Yun, Mr. Law Fei Shing, Mr. Chung Wai Man, Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco
and Mr. Leung Siu Hong shall retire and are eligible to offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment of the
Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members as at the date of
this report namely:

Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco (Appointed on 27 July 2015) (Chairman)
Mr. Chung Wai Man (Appointed on 27 July 2015)
Mr. Leung Siu Hong (Appointed on 27 July 2015)

Mr. Wong Sui Chi (Resigned on 27 July 2015)

Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jeny (Resigned on 27 July 2015)
Jerry Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong (Resigned on 27 July 2015)
Mr. Frostick Stephen William (Resigned on 27 July 2015)

All of the current members are independent non-executive Directors

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee on 22 June 2011
(the “Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference (available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange) that set out the
authorities and duties of the Audit Committee adopted by the Board.
The Audit Committee performs, amongst others, the following functions:

° reviewing the financial information of the Group;

° reviewing the relationship with and the terms of appointment of the
external auditors; and

° reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system.

The Audit Committee are given sufficient resources to oversee the
internal control system of the Group, reports to the Board on any
material issues, and makes recommendations to the Board. During the
year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s annual
results and annual report for the year ended 31 December 2015, the
accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group, the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, the Company’s internal control
and risk management systems and processes, and the re-appointment
of the external auditors.

The Audit Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended 31
December 2015.
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The Audit Committee comprises three members as at the date of this
report namely:

Mr. Leung Siu Hong (Appointed on 27 July 2015) (Chairman)
Mr. Chung Wai Man (Appointed on 27 July 2015)
Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco (Appointed on 27 July 2015)

Mr. Wong Sui Chi (Resigned on 27 July 2015)

Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry (Resigned on 27 July 2015)

Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong (Resigned on 27 July 2015)

Mr. Frostick Stephen William (Resigned on 27 July 2015)

All the members are independent non-executive Directors (including two
independent non-executive Director who possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Audit Committee reviews the adequacy of the Company’s internal
financial controls, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management policies and systems established by the management of
the Company.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review and
an assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
systems including financial, operational and risk management.

The Board is responsible for the overall internal control framework and is
fully aware of the need to put in place a system of internal controls within
the Group to safeguard the interests of the Company’s shareholders and
the Group’s assets, and to manage risks. The Board also acknowledges
that no cost effective internal control system will preclude all errors and
irregularities. A system is designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company on their reporting
responsibilities and opinion on the Group’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by
the external auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could
lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has incurred an
aggregate fee of approximately HK$1,640,000 to the external auditor.
In which, the amount of HK$1,200,000 was paid for the audit purposes
and HK$440,000 was paid for non-audit purposes. The non-audit
services consist of tax matters, review and provide other reporting
services.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view. In
preparing the financial statements, appropriate accounting policies and
standards are selected and applied consistently.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and facilitating communications among the
Directors as well as with shareholders and management.

Ms. Au Man Wai Annie resigned as the company secretary and Mr. Mui
Chi Hung (“Mr. Mui”) was appointed as the company secretary, both with
effect from 28 October 2015.

During 2015, Mr. Mui has attended relevant professional training to
update his skills and knowledge. He met the training requirements set
out in Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is a
key to enhance investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open and
timely disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and the
public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual and interim
reports.

The website of the Company (www.legend-strategy.com) has provided
an effective communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

The Company has not made any change to its constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2015. A consolidated version of
the Company’s constitutional documents is available on the Company’s
website and the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director receives a formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has continuously provided relevant training materials to the
Directors. Directors participated in continuous development relating to
their roles, functions and duties of a listed company director or further
enhancement of their professional development by the way of attending
training courses or reading relevant materials. All Directors had provided
the Company their training records for the year under review. The
Directors and officers are indemnified under a Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in discharge
of their duties while holding office as the Directors and officers of the
Company. The Directors and officers shall not be indemnified where
there is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust proven against them.
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The participation by individual directors in 2015 is recorded in the table
below:

TREHERNEEN S —RF22H8ER

Attending Reading regulatory
Directors Seminar(s) updates
BEEERE
o=} o FEE o8 HWERHER
Mr. Huang Yun =EELAE v/ v
Mr. Law Fei Shing EEESR S v/ v
Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco EHEESAE v/ v/
Mr. Leung Siu Hong BICEESLE v 4
Mr. Chung Wai Man EEEE v 4
SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION BERRZBE
The Company has adopted a shareholders communication policy with ARG BN ERR BB BE - EERRRRE

objectives to provide our shareholders with detailed information about
the Company so that they can exercise their rights as shareholders
in an informed manner. The Company would review the shareholders
communication policy on a regular basis.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives,
including annual general meeting, annual report, various notices,
announcements and circulars. Procedures for demanding a poll have
been included in circulars accompanying notice convening a general
meeting and such procedures have been read out by the chairman of
the general meeting. The annual general meeting and other general
meetings of the Company are primary forum for communication
between the Company and its shareholders. The Company shall provide
shareholders with relevant information on the resolution(s) proposed
at a general meeting in a timely manner in accordance with the Listing
Rules. The information provided shall be reasonably necessary to
enable shareholders to make an informed decision on the proposed
resolution(s). At the annual general meeting held on 29 May 2015 (the
“2015 AGM”) , a separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman in
respect of each separate issue, including re-election of the Directors.

At the 2015 AGM, the executive Directors and chairman of the Board,
the chairmen of the audit, remuneration and nomination committees and
representatives from the auditor of the Company, ZhongHui Anda CPA
Limited, were present for questions from shareholders. There was one
general meeting held during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-executive
Directors should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. At the said meeting, all
the independent non-executive Directors were presented to enable
the Board to develop a balanced understanding of the views of the
shareholders of the Company, except Mr. Frostick Stephen William
who was unable to attend the 2015 AGM due to other business
commitments.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, shareholders are requested
to follow article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company, general
meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any one or
more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary to the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails
to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
PROPOSE A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A
DIRECTOR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election as a
Director of the Company are laid down in article 85 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. No person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be eligible
for election to the office of Director at any general meeting unless a
notice in writing of the intention to propose such person for election
as a Director, signed by a shareholder (other than the person to be
proposed for election as a Director) duly qualified to attend and vote at
the meeting for which such notice is given, and a notice in writing signed
by such person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged
at the head office or at the Registration Office. The minimum length of
the period during which such notices are given shall be at least seven
(7) days and the period for lodgment of such notices shall commence
no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7)
days prior to the date of such general meeting. Detailed procedures for
shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director are available
on the Company’s website.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of the company secretary, by email: info@lIsih.com.hk, or mail
to Room 3006-10, 30/F., China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules,
and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of
the Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate,
truthful and complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as well
as the public to make rational and informed decisions.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure
an effective distribution of the resources and shareholders’ interests. The
senior management will continue endeavors in maintaining, enhancing
and increasing the Group’s corporate governance level and quality.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Huang Yun (EE)

Mr. Huang Yun, aged 53, was appointed as an Executive Director on
25 June 2015. Mr. Huang is a director and owns 10% equity interest
of China Medical Overseas Limited. He is also the chairman of ¥7#:Ek
RULR)REBRETE AT (transliterated as “Xin Jie Zhi Yuan (Beijing)
Investment Co., Ltd.”), an investment holding company holding interest
in a chain of restaurants in the PRC. Mr. Huang has over 16 years of
business experience, including investments on real estate, finance and
securities, major chain catering enterprises and extensive experience in
operation and investment management.

Mr. Law Fei Shing (ZBfEiH L 4)

Mr. Law Fei Shing (“Mr. Law”), aged 56, was appointed as an
Executive Director on 19 November 2014. He is a member of American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), USA and an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA). Mr. Law has over 26 years of experience in the audit and
accounting services.

Currently, Mr. Law is an executive director, deputy chief executive officer
and the company secretary of Anxian Yuan China Holdings Limited (stock
code: 922); and a non-executive director of Beautiful China Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 706) and Pak Tak International Limited
(stock code: 2668), those shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is
also an executive director of China Assurance Finance Group Limited
(stock code: 8090); and a company secretary of Orient Securities
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8001), those shares are listed
on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Law was an executive director (from August 2004 to December
2011), the company secretary (from August 2004 to May 2011) and
the chief executive officer (from November 2007 to December 2011) of
Energy International Investments Holdings Limited (stock code: 353),
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
He was also an executive director (from January 2009 to May 2013) and
the company secretary (from January 2009 to January 2013) of Bestway
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 718), the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Law resigned as
company secretary and re-designated from executive director to non-
executive director of Pak Tak International Limited (stock code: 2668) on
16 December 2014.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco (E/ZE £ 4)

Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco (“Mr. Tso”), aged 52, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 25 June 2015. He is currently a partner with Messrs. Tso Au Yim
& Yeung, Solicitors and has been a Hong Kong practising solicitor since
1990. Mr. Tso received his Bachelor of Laws degree from King’s College
London.

From November 2000 to September 2004, Mr. Tso worked as
independent non-executive director of Emperor Entertainment Group
Limited (Stock Code: 8078) which was later renamed as Dragonlott
Entertainment Group Limited in April 2010 and China 3D Digital
Entertainment Limited in September 2010. From July 2003 to November
2012, Mr. Tso worked as independent non-executive director of Fortuna
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code : 530) which was later
renamed as Goldin Financial Holdings Limited in May 2009. From May
2005 to September 2005, Mr. Tso worked as independent non-executive
director of Magician Industries (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code : 526)
which was later renamed as Lisi Group (Holdings) Limited in August
2010. In December 2006, he worked as the executive director of Tiger
Tech Holdings Limited; from December 2006 to June 2007, he worked
as the executive director and company secretary in Tiger Tech Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 8046) which was later renamed as Heng Xin China
Holdings Limited in November 2008. From August 2007 to August
2012, Mr. Tso worked as independent non-executive director of Rising
Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code : 1004) which was later
renamed as China Smarter Energy Group Holdings Limited in February
2015. From May 2007 to July 2015, Mr. Tso worked as independent
non-executive director of Neolink Cyber Technology (Holding) Limited
(Stock Code: 8116), which was later renamed as Global Resources
Development (Holding) Limited in May 2009, China Public Healthcare
(Holding) Limited in December 2009 and China Fortune Investments
(Holdings) Limited in June 2012. Mr. Tso has also been the independent
non-executive director of First Natural Foods Holdings Limited, which
was later renamed as Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited in
May 2014 (Stock Code: 1076) since November 2013.
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Mr. Chung Wai Man (2&X)

Mr. Chung Wai Man (“Mr. Chung”), aged 52, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 25 June 2015. Mr. Chung
obtained a Bachelor’'s degree (honours) in social sciences from the
University of Hong Kong in December 1989 and a Master’s degree in
international business management from the City University of Hong
Kong in November 1998. Mr. Chung became an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in April 1995 and
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom in November 1999.

Mr. Chung has more than 25 years of experience in accounting, taxation
and finance and had worked as the chief financial officer for three listed
companies in Hong Kong before.

Mr. Chung has also been an independent non-executive director of
e Lighting Group Holdings Limited (ZfRAEEIZR B R A 7)) (Stock
Code: 8222) since September 2014.

Mr. Leung Siu Hong (2 JKEE)

Mr. Leung Siu Hong (23EE), aged 40, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 25 June 2015. He obtained a
designated degree of Master of Arts in Accountancy (equivalent to a
bachelor degree) from the University of Aberdeen in October 1997. He
also obtained a Master degree of Corporate Governance from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in October 2011 and Master of Science
degree of in Financial Analysis from the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in June 2014. Mr. Leung has been a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since May 2002. He
has been admitted as a fellow of the same association since May 2007.
Mr. Leung has also been a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since February 2010. He became a fellow of both
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators since July 2013.

Mr. Leung has over 18 years of experience in accounting. From March
2006 to January 2008, Mr. Leung worked as a qualified accountant,
financial controller and company secretary for Ta Yang Group Holdings
Limited (RFEBEIERAR A R]) (Stock Code: 1991). Mr. Leung has
been the financial controller and company secretary of China Starch
Holdings Limited (*F Bl 1EAR BBR A F]) (Stock Code: 3838) since
February 2008. Mr. Leung has also been the independent non-executive
director of China Partytime Culture Holdings Limited (77 BlJ/& ¥ S/ 322 %
AR A 7F]) (Stock Code: 1532) since August 2015.
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND COMPANY
SECRETARY

Mr. Mui Chi Hung (#& %), aged 49, has over 20 years of experience
in financing, auditing and accounting. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Mui held various senior positions in a few listed groups and international
accounting firm, including PricewaterhouseCoopers, Lansen
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (stock code: 503) (“Lansen”) and China
Smarter Energy Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as “Rising
Development Holdings Limited” (stock code: 1004 ) (“Rising”)). He spent
7 years serving as the Financial Controller, Company Secretary and
Executive Director in Rising and 5 years serving as the Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary in Lansen.

Mr. Mui Chi Hung obtained his bachelor’s degree in Management
majoring in Accounting from the University of Lethbridge in Canada and
his master’s degree in Professional Accounting from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Mui is currently a member of AICPA and
HKICPA.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Jin Ling (£%), aged 49, General Counsel of the Group. She
obtained a Bachelor degree and a Master degree in law from Beijing
University. She has also studied law at SOAS, University of London.
Ms. Jin was qualified as a PRC lawyer in 1992 and has been in private
practice from 1994 to July 2015 during which she founded a PRC
law firm as a founding partner in 1995, and worked as Chinese Legal
Consultant and associate successively with two leading international
law firms since 2001. She has extensive experience in corporate
restructuring, initial public offering, merger and acquisition, public
company compliance and dispute resolution works.

Mr. Chen Wai Chung Edmund (FR/&EB), aged 43, Vice President
and Chief Investment Officer of the Group. Mr. Chen has over 17 years
of experience in accounting, auditing and financial control. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chen held various senior positions in international
accounting firms, listed company in Hong Kong and domestic privately-
owned enterprises, including Ernst & Young, KPMG Hong Kong, KPMG
Huazhen. He was the Vice President and Company Secretary of Austar
Lifesciences Limited (stock code: 6118) from November 2014 to
October 2015.
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From July 2013 to October 2015, Mr. Chen was also an Independent
Non-executive Director of Huarong International Financial Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Simsen International Corporation Limited)
(Stock code: 993). From November 2014 to January 2016, he was
also a Non-executive Director of Sunrise (China) Technology Group
Limited (Stock code: 8226), a listed company on GEM. Mr. Chen holds a
bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong.
He is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and an associate member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

Ms. He An Ying (i & %), aged 47, operation director of the Group.
Ms. He joined the Group in December 2005. She hold a qualification
certificate as an ISO9001: 2000 Internal Quality Auditor issued by FE3E
= EEBEBARZAR (Kaugdaxin Management Consulting Company
Limited). Ms. He is primarily responsible for the ordinary course of
operation of all the hotels under the Group, including hotel brand
services, marketing, team management and arrangement of the
communication matters relating to the government authorities. Ms. He
has been engaging in operation management in various companies in
Hong Kong, accumulating over 20 years of experience in hotel operation,
catering and private clubs management. With her rich experience in the
hotel management and the relationship she established with relevant
social sectors, she seeks commercial opportunities to maximize the
benefits for the development of the Company and leads the smooth
growth of the Welcomeinn.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The directors (the “Directors”) have pleasure in submitting their report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company, and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review are set out in the section of “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 16.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries are principally engaged in operating budget hotels and
providing management services in the PRC. There was no significant
change in its activities during the year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
segments is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on page 49 of this annual
report.

The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2015.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTIES

The Group did not own any major property or property interests as at 31
December 2015.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders comprising share premium account plus
retained earnings, amounted to approximately HK$98.5 million.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in the equity
on page 52 respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The diversity and nature of the Group’s activities are such that the
percentage of sales attributes to the Group’s five largest customers is
significantly less than 30% of the total and the Directors do not consider
any one customer to be influential to the Group.

The main suppliers of the Group comprise of suppliers of disposable
amenities, cleaning products and laundry services. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 83.2% (2014: 89.9%) of the
total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 31.1% (2014: 28.7%) of total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during the financial year
ended 31 December 2015.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The Group did not have any outstanding bank loans as at 31 December
2015 (2014 Nil). Details of borrowings of the Group during the year are
set out in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
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INTEREST CAPITALISED

The Group had no capitalised interest during the year ended 31
December 2015.(2014: HK$675,000).

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for year ended 31 December
2015 is set out on page 112 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Huang Yun (Appointed on 25 June 2015)

Mr. Law Fei Shing

Mr. Fong Man Kelvin (Resigned on 27 July 2015)
Ms. Fong Nga (Resigned on 27 July 2015)

Mr. Mak Yiu Cho (Resigned on 27 July 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco (Appointed on 25 June 2015)
Mr. Leung Siu Hong (Appointed on 25 June 2015)
Mr. Chung Wai Man (Appointed on 25 June 2015)
Dr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry (Resigned on 27 July 2015)
Mr. Wong Sui Chi (Resigned on 27 July 2015)
Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong (Resigned on 27 July 2015)
Mr. Frostick Stephen William

(Resigned on 27 July 2015)

Mr. Fong Man Kelvin, Ms Fong Nga and Mr. Mak Yiu Cho have resigned
as Executive Directors of the Company with effect from 27 July 2015
due to their other business commitments. Mr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry, Mr.
Wong Siu Chi, Mr. Frostick Stephen William and Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong
have resigned as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 27 July 2015 due to personal reason. Mr. Fong Man
Kelvin, Ms Fong Nga, Mr. Mak Yiu Cho, Mr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry, Mr.
Wong Siu Chi, Mr. Frostick Stephen William and Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong
have confirmed that they have no disagreement with the Board and they
are not aware of any matter regarding their resignations that need to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company. The Board
would like to express its sincere gratitude to Ms. Fong Nga, Mr. Mak Yiu
Cho, Mr. Wong Hak Kun Jerry, Mr. Wong Siu Chi, Mr. Frostick Stephen
William and Mr. Liu Cheng Zhong for their valuable contributions to the
Company during their tenure of office.
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The terms of office of each Director are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out from pages 32 to 36 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2015 AGM
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the Independent Non-executive Directors were appointed for a
specific term of one year, but subject to the relevant provisions of
the Articles of Associations or any other applicable laws whereby the
directors shall vacate or retire from their office.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company and the
five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Remuneration packages of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.

DIRECTORS AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER'’S INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director or controlling shareholder of the company had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’ S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the Directors
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, were as follows :
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Percentage of

Name Capacity Number of shares Shareholding
i 514 RGEAR RERDL
Mr. Law Fei Shing (Note 1) Beneficial Owner 201,503,082 51.20%
B ST A (P EET) EnfEA

Mr. Huang Yun (Note 3) Interest in a controlled incorporation 39,352,500 512%

BELA (HEE3) REEHEE 2 #e s

Note 1: As at 31 December 2015, the 201,503,082 shares were subject to a
share charge executed by China Medical Overseas Limited (as chargor)
in favour of Excel Precise International Limited (as chargee) which is
owned as to 25% by Mr. Law Fei Shing and as to 73.5% by True Promise
Investment Limited, a company which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. Law
Fei Shing.

Note 2: All interest stated above represent long positions.

Note 3: China Medical Overseas Limited is owned by Mr. Ding Yifan and Mr.
Huang Yun as to 90% and 10% equity interest respectively. Mr. Huang
Yun was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares which China
Medical Overseas Limited was interested.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there were no debt
securities issued by the Group at any time. Save as disclosed herein,
as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company or their associates had any interests and short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which each of them has taken or deemed
to have taken under the provisions of the SFO); or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register
referred to therein; or which were required, pursuant to Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons, (not being Directors or Chief Executive of the
Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short position in
the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO; or who is directly or indirectly, to be interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group.

Long position in the Shares of the Company

TBREAREMALRELTR
- B G RERR 2R R %
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REERHT R-_T-AF+-_A=+—8H"
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Bty BRI R R KBRS EEREES
REAEGOIEXVEE 2 REID MR AMRA
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Percentage of

Name Capacity Number of shares Shareholding
mEEB 514 RGEAR REBDL
China Medical Overseas Limited Beneficial Owner 201,503,082 51.20%
(formerly known as China Angel BE=BA
Investments Holding Limited)
(Note 1)
RERZIGINER A E (R
PEIREIREZERARAT)
(F5E1)
Ding Yifan (Note 1) Interest in a controlled 201,503,082 51.20%
T—R(FE1) incorporation
NSE I VNE v
Excel Precise International Limited Person having a security 201,503,082 51.20%
(Note 2) interest in Shares
BB AR AR (KMiEE2) RIRDEBRIRRZ AL
True Promise Investments Limited Interest in a controlled 201,503,082 51.20%
(Note 2) incorporation
WA EBR AR (KMiEE2) REESER 2
=95 (Note 3) Interest of spouse 201,503,082 51.20%
A FB(HTEE3) [y e
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Note 1: China Medical Overseas Limited is owned by Mr. Ding Yifan and Mr.
Huang Yun as to 90% and 10% equity interest respectively. Mr. Ding
Yifan was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares which China
Medical Overseas Limited was interested.

Note 2: As at 31 December 2015, the 201,503,082 shares were subject to a
share charge executed by China Medical Overseas Limited (as charger)
in favour of Excel Precise International Limited (as chargee) which is
owned as to 25% by Mr. Law Fei Shing and as to 73.5% by True Promise
Investment Limited, a company which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. Law
Fei Shing.

Note 3: &%, spouse of Mr. Ding Yifan, was deemed to be interested in the
201,503,082 shares in which Mr. Ding Yifan is interested for the purpose
of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Directors were
not aware of any person (other than the Directors as disclosed in the
paragraph headed “Directors” interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures” above) who had, or deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or who were directly or indirectly interested in 5 % or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstance at general meetings of any member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2015 and up to the date or this report,
the Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the Directors,
the management of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) that compete or may compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflict of interest which any such
person has or may have with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There is no contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisitions of shares or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporates.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Details of related party transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015 are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements. None of the related party transactions as disclosed in Note
33 to the consolidated financial statements constitutes a connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Save for the placing of shares in early January 2015 (details of which
were disclosed in the announcements dated 22 December 2014 and
9 January 2015), the mandatory unconditional cash offers (details of
which were disclosed in the joint announcements dated 25 June 2015,
13 July 2015 and 27 July 2015 and the joint composite documents
dated 25 June 2015), issuance of new shares due to the exercise of
share options (details of which was disclosed in the announcement
dated 9 June 2015), and the open offer (details of which were disclosed
in the announcements dated 28 August 2015, 7 September 2015,
9 September 2015, 29 September 2015, 15 October 2015 and the
prospectus dated 22 September 2015), neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company during the financial year ended 31 December
2015. Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had issued or granted any convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights or exercised any conversion or subscription
rights under any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
during the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to issue of this report, the Company has maintained the sufficient
public float under the Listing Rules.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 86 employees. Remunerations
of the Group’s employees are determined in accordance with the
terms of government policies and by reference to market level and the
performance, qualifications and experience of employees. Discretionary
bonuses are paid to few employees as recognition of and reward for
their contribution to the corporate development. Other benefits include
contributions to retirement schemes, medical schemes, unemployment
insurance schemes and housing allowances.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year under reviewed.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There were no connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
which are subject to the reporting, announcement or independent

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company had a share option scheme (“Scheme”) which was
adopted pursuant to a resolution of the sole shareholder passed on 22
June 2011 and adopted by a resolution of the Board on 22 June 2011.
The purpose of the Scheme was to attract, retain and motivate talented
participants to strive for future developments and expansion of the
Group. The Scheme shall be an incentive to encourage the participants
to perform their best in achieving the goals of the Group and allow the
participants to enjoy the results of the Company attained through their
efforts and contributions.

The Scheme became effective on 22 June 2011 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the
adoption of the Scheme, the principal terms of which were summarized
in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in Appendix V to the
Company’s prospectus dated 30 June 2011 (the “Prospectus”).
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Number of share options
BEREHE
Option Option Option
Exercise Asat granted exercised lapsed As at
Exercisable price 31 December during the during the during the 31 December
Category Date of grant Period per share 2014 period period period 2015
R-%-BF RAE RZ5-1%
= REAEL im0 RERENR t2A
£l RiAH 88 BRTRE =t-A MERE EhE hiERE =t-H
Employees 8 October 2013 8 October 2013 to 1.822 6,450,000 - 750,000 (5,700,000) -
7 October 2015
[E5 “E-ZE+ANE ZE-ZETANRE
“2-1ETALE
PENSION SCHEMES BRINETE

As of 31 December 2015, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to redeem its contributions to the pension scheme in future
years (2014: nil).

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 have
been audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (“ZHONGHUI”) and
a resolution for the reappointment as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting. ZHONGHUI was
the auditor of the Company since 4 November 2014.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON WEBSITES

This annual report is available for viewing on the website of Stock
Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of the Company at
www.legend-strategy.com.

By order of the Board

Huang Yun

Executive Director

18 March 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M A% B ED R

T o

ZHONGHUI
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

LEGEND STRATEGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP
COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Legend
Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 49 to 111, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M A% B ED R

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015, and
of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Lok

Practising Certificate Number PO6084
Hong Kong, 18 March 2016

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEEBEREMEEWAR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-0fF —E—mE
Notes HK$ HK$
bz A IT BIT
Revenue g 6 19,884,379 29,700,841
Operating lease expenses LIBEHERY (17,057,985) (17,974,662)
Depreciation of property, Y% -~ RENEEITE
plant and equipment (4,691,183) (7,255,616)
Employee benefit expenses EERAMFAEX 7 (14,050,367) (13,153,151)
Utilities N (2,063,031) (1,857,458)
Other operating expenses Hih @R 12 (97,020,980) (30,219,888)
Other income H A 9 725,051 159,995
Operating loss EEEE (114,274,116) (40,599,939)
Finance costs BLE RS 10 (187,296) (448,789)
Impairment of interests in REBRRIZE=RE 17
joint ventures - (6,797,484)
Written off of amounts due MEEEW A B D RIRIE 21
from joint ventures (2,112,528) —
Share of results of joint ventures ~ DMhAE R AL 17 (6,831,600) (12,331,951)
Loss before tax RREL AT 18 (123,405,540) (60,178,163)
Income tax (expenses)/credit Fs® () e 11 (430,064) 8,634,678
Loss for the year attributable  RQ T #EE AEEREEEE
to owners of the Company 12 (123,835,604) (51,543,485)
Other comprehensive loss: Hit2EERE :
Items that may be reclassified to  AJpEEF HIEZE R 2 HE -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on BMEBINETREE 2 EH Z5E
translating foreign operations (771,282) (1,098,573)
Share of other comprehensive JEMEERARZEMmETEEA
income of joint ventures - 6,210
Other comprehensive loss REFEMEEEE - NBREIE
for the year, net of tax (771,282) (1,092,363)
Total comprehensive loss RATEEAEEREE
for the year attributable to ZHEIBAE
owners of the Company (124,606,886) (52,635,848)
Loss per share S EE 14 (Restated)
(FE5))
— Basic (Hong Kong cents) — EAR B (35.41) (20.33)
— Diluted (Hong Kong cents) — B () (35.41) (20.33)

Annual Report 2015

“E-AFFR



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e TR R

As at 31 December 2015 R—Z—AF+_-_A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-HF —ET—mEF
Notes HK$ HK$
MI5E BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MR 15 42,078,650 77,312,841
Prepayments TEfF 0B 16 - 24,169,069
Rental deposits HEZS 16 3,493,002 2,243,510
Other receivables H b fE U kI8 16 2,000,000 =
Prepaid operating leases FEEEHE 16 8,406,356 9,823,653
Interests in joint ventures REBRRZ R 17 - 6,831,600
Other asset Hib&EE 18 1,440,000 =
Deferred income tax assets EEFTSTREE 19 1,186,137 1,688,384
58,604,145 122,069,057
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables FEW R TR 20 262,600 7,741,933
Prepayments, deposits and TBNFHIE  EZe Rk
other receivables H b pE Y RIE 16 19,180,638 27,839,907
Amounts due from joint ventures  JEULA B A FIFIE 21 - 2,114,950
Bank and cash balances RITRIFA R 47,612,022 2,322,143
67,055,260 40,018,933
Current liabilities REEE
Provision for asset retirement IREEEEE RS 22 - 2,422,083
Trade and other payables JE AT BR R B ELAth FE A< R IE 23 12,966,339 21,696,678
Current income tax liabilities EHFSHAR 1,366,219 1,733,623
Finance lease payables JEBmERERIE 24 - 419,560
14,332,558 26,271,944
Net current assets FREEE 52,722,702 13,746,989
Total assets less current BEHABRRBARS
liabilities 111,326,847 135,816,046

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e TR R

As at 31 December 2015 R—Z—AF+_-_A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-hF —E—F
Notes HK$ HK$
MosE BT BT
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Provision for asset retirement WEEE EE RS 22 3,959,157 1,485,747
Finance lease payables FEfmE R ERIE 24 - 155,583
3,959,157 1,641,330
Net assets EEFE 107,367,690 134,174,716
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves EATEBA
attributable to the owners BhERR G
of the Company
Share capital IEEN 25 3,935,250 2,617,701
Reserves ] 103,432,440 131,557,015
Total equity EREEE 107,367,690 134,174,716
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GEREZBER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RORREARL
Share- Retained
based earnings/
Share Share Exchange Statutory payment Other  Shareholder's  (accumulated
capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve*  contributions* losses)* Total
HRAAER REEN/
e RiEE* EXfE EERE  ZARERE Rt RREE  (ZHEE) a5
Note28(c)i) ~ Note28(c)ij  Note28(c)fii) ~ Note28(c)(y)  Note 28(c)y)
Wi MEosON  MEo8Q MG 28N
Notes HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
i3 BT iy BT BT BT AT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2014 R=%-ME-A-A 2,165,001 71493994 4,237,375 1,604,263 2,935,250 8,020,110 20,751,024 39262972 150,469,989
Total comprehensive ~ ERZEBEASE
|oss for the year - - (1,092,369) - - - - (5154348 (52,635,848
Exercise of share ESfitERE
options by employees 26 17,700 341,775 - - (658,775) - - - 2,870,700
Issue of shares on RERTRA
placement % 435,000 33,930,000 - - - - - - 34,365,000
Transaction costs REEENRANA
attributable to
placement - (895,125) - - - - - - (895,125)
Tansfertostatutoy ~ EAEFRE
reserve - - - 138,500 - - - (138,500) -
At31 December 2014 R=F-MfE
and1January2015  +=F=t-A
R=E-1E-f-A 2617,701 107,940,644 3,145,012 1,742,763 2,376,475 8,020,110 2075104 (12419013 134,174,716
Total comprehensive ~ FRZEFELEE
loss for the year - - (171,282) - - - - (123,835,604) (124,606,886
Exercise of share EEMiERE
options by employees 26 7,500 1,630,125 - - (271,125) - - - 1,366,500
Issue of shares on RERRG
placement 25 523,000 33,995,000 - - - - - - 34,518,000
Issue of shares on AREEXRA
open offer % 787,049 62,176,948 - - - - - - 62,963,097
Transaction costs RERIENRANA
attributable to
placement - (587,785) - - - - - - (587,785)
Transaction costs AREEREN
attibutable to REEA
open offer - (460,852) - - - - - - (460,852)
Lapse of share options ~ EEFREESK K % - - - - (2105,350) - - 2,105,350 -
At31 December 2015 R=Z-1f
tZA=+-A 3,935,250 204,694,080 2,373,730 1,742,763 - 8,020,110 20,751,024 (134,149,267) 107,367,690
Notes: BiE -
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserve of * ZEREREESREMBURNER ZGEEHE

HK$1083,432,440 (2014: HK$131,557,015) in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —Z—AF+_A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—ET-RF —mE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHEENRERE
Loss before tax BRI AR (123,405,540) (60,178,163)
Adjustments for: $RAEE
Depreciation e 4,691,183 7,255,616
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease TR AR TH B 865,570 865,788
Finance cost on asset retirement obligations WMEEEEREEARERA 186,990 180,912
Finance cost on finance lease liabilities BEHEAERNRENA - 39,033
Interest on overdue payments EHA AT B 306 3,844
Interest on other loan wholly repayable —FREIERNEM
within one year BERFE - 900,000
Interest income on non-current LB SER AN ET E R IE TR ED
rental deposits carried at amortised cost HEZSFBUA (84,225) (56,346)
Bank interest income IRITHBUA (1,662) (592)
Provision for impairment of trade receivables %H&Eﬁ%ﬂ?)ﬁfﬁ%ﬁ - 4,423,101
Share of results of joint ventures DIREERRZEE 6,831,600 12,331,951
Impairment of interests in joint ventures REER 72*& /)WE - 6,797,484
Written off of amounts due from joint ventures s e S E A ] 2,112,528 =
Loss on disposal of property, HEwE - ﬁ%&?&ﬁ
plant and equipment ol it 70,170 =
Written off of property, plant and equipment MEEMZE -~ B K 41,509,239 5,167,969
Written off of prepaid-operating lease MEHTE R E 618,338 =
Written off of rental deposits M EZS 732,364 =
Written off of prepayments WSH TR FRIE 23,864,029 —
Written off of other receivables g B b FE U IR 552,484 —
Written off of trade receivables i 5 Uk BR SR 7,441,883 =
Operating loss before working capital changes BEESEHINLCEGE (34,014,743) (22,269,403)
Increase in prepaid operating lease TR AT &1 N (96,796) (197,351)
Decrease/(increase) in trade FEUIBR TR R E Ath
and other receivables FEMGRIER D, (38h0) 5,669,263 (1,300,455)
Increase in rental deposits HAEZSIEN (1,824,835) (766,204)
(Decrease)/increase in trade FERTBR R R B At
and other payables FET I (R A) /10 (8,156,202) 5,096,102
Increase in amounts due from joint ventures FEURA & N A FRIEE hN - (1,090,496)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z - &

—HE+ZA=T-HALFE

2015 2014
—E-RF —PueF
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Cash used in operations REFMARS (38,423,313) (20,527,807)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EXHEEFE - (32,524)
PRC income tax paid B Xt BEIFE (408,679) (3,935,511)
Interest on overdue payments paid B E E’J?F'J =) (306) (3,844)
Interest paid on other loan wholly repayable B —FAZEERNEA
within one year BEHF 8 - (900,000)
Net cash used in operating activities KB TRENFT RIS F 5 (38,832,298) (25,399,686)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHEENEERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEMZE  BE LXK (12,455,313) (358,733)
Capital injections to joint ventures HEERAIZEE - (522,089)
Increase in prepayment for property, M - WE KR
plant and equipment 2 BT FIRE N - (26,193,767)
Acquisition of other asset W E & (1,440,000) =
Interest received BEUFE 1,662 592
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWZE - BE &
plant and equipment FRfS s8R 691,833 =
Net cash used in investing activities WEREFTARESF5E (13,201,818) (27,073,997)
Cash flows from financing activities METBHELNRERE
Proceeds from exercise of share options TR SRR 1,366,500 2,870,700
Repayment of finance lease liabilities EEREHEaER (575,143) (322,835)
Net proceeds from issue of shares on placement  FLEC&EZE1THD 2 AT ?%'J" RIE)HEE 33,930,215 33,469,875
Net proceeds from issue of shares on open offer  Ft AR ZE & 21T
Z PSR F5R 62,503,145 —
Net cash generated from financing activities BB EBFTS IR & FRE 97,224,717 36,017,740
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RERESEEY
and cash equivalents i CEd) F58 45,190,601 (16,455,943)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FUNBES MRS EFEY
beginning of the year 2,322,143 19,585,536
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNIE DE R F B o 2 99,278 (807,450)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FANRER[EEEY 47,612,022 2,322,143

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of business
is Room 3006-10, 30/F., China Resources Building, 26 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the budget hotel operations and provision
of hotel consultancy and management services in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that
are relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting
year beginning on 1 January 2015. HKFRSs comprise Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards; Hong Kong Accounting
Standards; and Interpretations. The adoption of these new and
revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to the
Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s financial
statements and amounts reported for the current year and prior
years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new and
revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new and revised HKFRSs would have a material impact on its
results of operations and financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs, and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the directors to exercise its judgements in the process
of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving critical
judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these financial statements, are disclosed in note 4 to
the financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties,
to determine whether it has control. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Joint arrangement

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more
parties have joint control. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control. Relevant activities are
activities that significantly affect the returns of the arrangement.
When assessing joint control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties,
to determine whether it has joint control. A potential voting right
is considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture.
A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A
joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Joint arrangement (Continued)

Investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially recognised
at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the joint venture in an
acquisition are measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the investment and is tested for impairment together
with the investment at the end of each reporting period when
there is objective evidence that the investment is impaired. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of a joint venture’s post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of
the post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the
consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds
its interest in the joint venture, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
venture. If the joint venture subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of
the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation

@)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”),
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
Statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z - &

3.

—HE+ZA=T-HALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

()

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

U

(i)

(i)

Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates

sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over the

estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual

rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Shorter of the unexpired term of
lease and 7 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

—HE+ZA=T-HALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents leasehold improvement stated
at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Cost includes the
costs of leasehold improvements and capitalised interest charges
arising from borrowings used to finance these assets during the
period of construction. No provision for depreciation is made on
construction in progress until such time the relevant assets are
completed and are available for intended use. When the assets
concerned are brought into use, the costs are transferred to
property, plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance with
the policy as stated in the preceding paragraphs.

Other asset

Other asset represents television (“TV”) drama series in production
and is stated at cost incurred to date, less any identified
impairment losses. Costs included all direct costs associated with
the production of TV drama series. Costs are transferred to TV
drama series rights upon completion.

An impairment loss is made when there has been a change in
the estimate used to determine the recoverable amount and the
carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

Leases

The Group as lessee

(i) Operating leases
Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for
as operating leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives

received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)
(i)  Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
finance leases. At the commencement of the lease term, a
finance lease is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of
the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as finance lease payable.
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance
charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as
owned assets.

The Group as lessor

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating

leases. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

FESTTEER#E)

HE#E)
NEE ZAEN ()
iy ®EHEE

BREMERHBEENERR KX

EIREL FEETASEMNES -
REMECHENHABREAEE
EZ A TFERRKEBENKRER
HZEBRE (MEHERERBE
TE)BETRER o

HEAZ HHEEH R BN K P
SRR R A E IR - HERA
REEHI DB ATEE R KRBT
EF°WW§%EE AR & 1

D URBRTEHRESRTLE
@ZE%W%O

RBREHE TN CEEREBEERE
MRZ T AFEITE

A5 5 5 TN

B

=M

\

REHERBREENMERRLERE
B LU EEETAEANEE - KEHE
& WA ER A B REFER

Annual Report 2015
—E-RFEER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment. An allowance for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount
of the allowance is the difference between the receivables’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition. The amount of the allowance is recognised in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and
recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the receivables’
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the receivables at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term
highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included
as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying
a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
AR EBZERER AR

3.

FESTTHER#E)

BERA

EERBRNKE FEElLEESERE
EEUAR—BEERBEUMEAERE
REREENEE) NBEERAE - XML
REEFEENRARD EEEERR E
BEZHEBRTERERKHERL - R EE
B AEFAERBEENIHMEBRIRE
REEIREWA - EESERENMENE
BRI -

R —RIER L BIERGEEREEME
AZEEME @ BEBENMEZEERRK
SRDEHZEEZ A EAERNEL X
T8 o B R SEARNA K EZHIE
NHAEEEE(TEERREAERE
EMEAZBERE) 2 MEFEEER
7 o

AEMEERANEELREERED
FERR -

FEAS RR AR B EL A A K

FEARRAR S Lt RN R ) PR H 2 ERE
R HERABRRN R R @A E -

FRIFRERFZEEMN - RULIER T - AR
ZAVN: -

RAETHR

RRAFEITHRA TR THZEWAFFIR
R ERBITRATIRR -



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

@)

(b)

()

(@

)

Hotel operations

Hotel revenue from hotel room and conference room rental is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Hotel management income

Hotel management income from operating a hotel is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Membership fee income

The fair value of the consideration received or receivable
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of the
membership.

Rental income on sub-leased hotel premise

Rental income in respect of rental of a sub-leased hotel
premise is recognised on a straight-line basis over a lease
period of 10 years.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.

Employee benefits

@)

(b)

(¢

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees
up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
retirement scheme organized by the government in the PRC.
The Group is required to contribute a specific percentage of
the payroll of its employees to the retirement scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the retirement
scheme. No forfeited contributions may be used by the
employers to reduce the existing level of contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs
and involves the payment of termination benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
directors and employees. Equity-settled share-based payments
are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(@)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(i)
(ii
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(viil)

The entity and the Company are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Company or to a parent of the Company.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and other intangible assets except deferred
income tax assets and receivables to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information
about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting period or
those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate
are adjusting events and are reflected in the financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material.

KEY ESTIMATES
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

(@  Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charge where useful lives and residual values are different to
those previously estimated, or it will write-off or writedown
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

3.
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4. KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(©),

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may be not recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based on
fair value less costs of disposal calculations or market
valuations. These calculations require the use of judgements
and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset value
may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs of disposal or net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset in the business;
and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management
in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
affect the net present value used in the impairment test and
as a result affect the Group’s financial position and results of
the operations.

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of the trade
and other receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each debtor. Impairments
arise where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. The identification
of bad and doubtful debts requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the actual result is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of the trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has been
changed. If the financial conditions of the debtors were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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4. KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

)

(7

Impairment loss for interests in joint ventures

In determining whether the interests in joint ventures are
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement in assessing:
(i) whether an event has occurred that may affect the value
of interests in joint ventures; (i) whether the carrying value
of joint ventures can be supported by the net present value
of future cash flows; (iii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate; and (iv) dividend policy of the joint ventures.

Asset retirement obligations

The Group evaluates and recognises, on a regular basis,
the present value of the obligations which arise from future
reinstatement of leased hotel premises upon the end of
lease terms. To establish the present value of the asset
retirement obligations, estimates and judgement are applied
in determining these future cash flows and the discount
rate. Management estimates the future cash flows based on
certain assumptions, such as the restoration costs based on
quotations.

Income taxes

Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers to be probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

5.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(GY)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as
most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currencies of the
Group entities except certain trade receivables of subsidiaries
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) while its functional
currency is HK$. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the trade and other receivables,
amounts due from joint ventures, cash and bank balances
and deposits included in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to the Group’s financial assets.

In respect of hotel operations, the Group has no
concentration of credit risk in view of its large number of
customers. It has policies in place to ensure that sale of
rooms to corporate customers are made to customers with
an appropriate credit history. Sales to walk-in customers are
made via credit cards or cash.

Amounts due from joint ventures are closely monitored
by the directors and management considers provision for
impairment has been provided appropriately.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high creditratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

()

5. BKREKRERE#)

Credit risk (Continued) (b) EARRE)
Rental deposits are mainly paid to seven (2014: seven) HEESFEINTEAMAEE
domestic private entities who are currently leasing the EHERAE  BEMERBEIRS
office, hotel premises and staff quarter to the Group. Other MEE(ZZE—HE - @) il
receivables primarily represent the amounts due from third AERB - HittEWHIEEZEEE K
and related parties which have long business relationship BEAKEGFERAZBEENE
with the Group. Taking into consideration settlements = REEFTHRIE KERZS
subsequent to year end, management considers provision HEBERFHEBARER  EBEERS
for impairment has been provided appropriately. BEEE M EL R ERE -
Liquidity risk (c) RBELER
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and REBE 2K RTEHERERRE
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains HREEeEXK  UBEEREFTE
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements RefE  NENHEHRRAR
in the short and longer term. BESHTRK
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities is as rEEeRmABECHBRI TN
follows: e
Lessthan Between1 Between2 Over
1year and2years and5 years 5years Total
£ -FZ@ME WMEREF  BARDF ok
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
At 31 December 2015 R-E-RF+-A=1+-H
Trade and other payables ~ ERMERI N EthfE(TFE 8,781,681 - - — 8,781,681
Lessthan  Between1  Between 2 Over
1year and2years andb years 5 years Total
—FrN —FE@MFE MEERF BARF s
HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HKS
Yo o BT Yow BT
At 31 December 2014 R-B-NE+=A=t+-H
Trade and other payables ~ JERNERI Rt fE(T FIR 14,934,803 = = — 14,934,803
Finance lease payables ENREEEHRER 441,402 157,455 - - 598,857
15,376,205 157,455 — — 15,533,660

Annual Report 2015
—E-REER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 5. BXEKRERE®)
(d) Interest rate risk (d) F=@Ekx
As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and HRAEBITEEAGFEEERE
liabilities except for finance lease payables, the Group’s BE(EMARBEREFERIN) - A
operating cash flows are substantially independent of SEKERSRAB LTS
changes in market interest rates. FIREE) 252 -
(e) Categories of financial instruments e) EMITAEZSE
2015 2014
—F-1F i
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets: SREE :
Loans and receivables B FEWRIE
(including bank and cash balances)  (B#EIRTTRIRE 4 5%) 70,176,386 39,992,689
Financial liabilities: THEE:
Financial liabilities at amortised costs  1ZE K AT EN SR B & 8,781,681 14,934,803
() Fair values H AF¥E

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position approximate their respective fair values.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, there were no assets
and liabilities that were measured at fair value.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has two reportable segments as follows:

—  Hotel operations (the sales of hotel membership cards,
hotel management services income and rental income on
a subleased premise are included in the hotel operation
segment); and

—  Provision of hotel consultancy services

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in note 3 to the financial statements. Segment
profits or losses do not include interest income, finance costs,
auditor’s remuneration, legal and professional fee, head office and
corporate expenses and shares of results and impairments arising
from the interests in joint ventures.

The segment information for the reportable segments for the year

N

e IER
AEBOMAT SRS HET

— BEZECEESR/RHEE EEE
EREH WA R 2 HYEE S WA
TRINBEESED#A) + R

—  REBEERRS

NEE 2 7] 23D IR EE M &R
B2 REE MRS BN - ARSEBERT
B2 BT RS HERE - S 2%
THERE TR

REDE 2 SR BUR M T MR ML S AT
2 GETBERE—2 - D EBBRTBIEF
BIA - BERAE - RO E - EZER
BXER  ERFRNEERAARSE
BERRRGEEL 2 FENRME -

AEE R 2H D B0 BEREIIT

is as follows:

Provision of

hotel
Hotel consultancy
operations services Total
RAHE
EEEE R AR FLR]
HK$ HK$ HK$
IT BIT T
For the year ended BE-Z—1F
31 December 2015 +-A=+—HLEE
Revenue from external customers R EINRE P 2 Wz 19,884,379 - 19,884,379
Segment loss 2 EBETIE (90,145,745) (3,139,860)  (93,285,605)
Depreciation of property, Y% - BB MEETE
plant and equipment 4,691,183 - 4,691,183
Written off of trade receivables B8 FE UL BR R 4,302,023 3,139,860 7,441,883
Written off of property, MEEMZE -~ BB KR
plant and equipment 41,509,239 — 41,509,239
For the year ended HE-ZT—F
31 December 2014 +ZA=+—HLEE
Revenue from external customers KRB INKREE 7 kzs 29,700,841 = 29,700,841
Segment loss S EBETIE (24,706,205) (3,159,358)  (27,865,563)
Depreciation of property, Y% - BREMEEITE
plant and equipment 7,255,616 — 7,255,616
Provision for impairment FEUBR SR BB AE
of trade receivables 1,263,743 3,159,358 4,423,101
Written off of property, WMESHMZE -~ BB KA
plant and equipment 5,167,969 — 5,167,969
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6.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

A reconciliation of segment results to loss before tax is provided as
follows:

ERSEAE BRR T AT IR 2 BRRE DN T -

S

2015 2014

—E-HF —T—g

HK$ HK$

A IT PBTT

Total loss of reportable segments 2D I EELTE (93,285,605) (27,865,563)

Unallocated corporate expenses, net RO FERAZFHE (21,074,398) (12,791,313

Interest income FLEWA 85,887 56,937

Finance costs BhE A (187,296) (448,789)

Impairment of interests in joint ventures REEBRRZ Em=RkE - (6,797,484)

Written off of amounts due MEE KA E A RIFIE

from joint ventures (2,112,528) —

Share of results of joint ventures DMEEERREE (6,831,600) (12,331,951)

Loss before tax FRETAIE B (123,405,540) (60,178,163)
Revenue from major customers: REFEEF 2R :

All revenue was derived from external customers in the PRC and
Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.
No revenue derived from one customer representing 10% or
more of the revenue of the Group for each of the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

The total of non-current assets other than deferred tax assets
located in Hong Kong and the PRC were HK$7,686,412 (2014:
HK$1,032,742) and HK$49,731,596 (2014: HK$119,347,931),
respectively.

Breakdown of revenue from all activities is as follows:

REBEE_Z—RFR-_ZT—NF+=A
=+—HIFE  EREEREFER
BEBRIINRES - WEEH —RRFELEN
WHEAEERBE_S—RAFR_-F
—E+—A=F+—BUHFEZFWEN
10% kA E ©

MR BEERTEAERBEERE(TE
TREERIBEE) D 5 £7,686,4128 (=
T — P4 : 1,032,742 7T ) }%49,731,596
BT ( T P04 119,347,931 /8 7T) °

FTEAB Wes RARE SN T -

2015 2014
—E-HF —E-mEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Sales from hotel operations — BIEEERNHERE —
hotel room rental, hotel management BEEREES -
services income and B IE B IR RIS MA R
conference room rental FREME 19,629,498 24,044,532
Management fee income EEEBWA - 2,806,312
Rental income on a sub-leased premise HEWERSIA - 2,524,776
Sales of hotel membership cards BEEEREE 254,881 325,221
19,884,379 29,700,841

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 7. EERANBEX (BEEEEM)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
2015 2014
—E-0F —Z O
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
Salaries, wages and allowances e - TEKEEh 12,378,156 11,254,228
Pension obligations RINSER 1,508,225 1,349,844
Other benefits HAthtaF 163,986 549,079
14,050,367 13,153,151
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EEHN
(@)  The emoluments of each director were as follows: @ BESZFHMEZIWOT :
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits schemes
Fees in kind contribution Total
e ERR Bfe
ok BNER BE 5 k]
Notes HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
Bzt BT BT BT BT
Year ended BE_Z-1F
31 December 2015 +=ZA=1+-HLEE
Executive directors: HTEE
Huang Yun 52 () 372,000 - - 372,000
Fong Man Kelvin AX (b) - 456,553 7,500 464,053
Fong Nga IS5 (b) - 206,100 10,300 216,400
Mak Yiu Cho B (b) - 103,050 5,150 108,200
Law Fei Shing BIER, - 405,000 12,750 417,750
Independent non-executive B FHTES
directors:
Tso Hon Sai Bosco EEH (@) 62,000 - - 62,000
Leung Siu Hong Y957 (@) 62,000 - - 62,000
Chung Wai Man $EREX (@) 62,000 - - 62,000
Wong Sui Chi Enk (b) 55,560 - - 55,560
Wong Hak Kun Jerry En () 55,560 - - 55,560
Frostick Stephen William  Frostick Stephen William (b) 55,560 - - 55,560
Liu Cheng Zhong Y (b) 55,560 - - 55,560
780,240 1,170,703 35,700 1,986,643

Annual Report 2015
—E-REER



: Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8. EEFHM =
(a)  The emoluments of each director were as follows: (Continued) @ BEBZHHMENOT : (&)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits schemes
Fees in kind contribution Total
e MR RIKE
ik EYEd ATEIfHR e
Notes HK! HK$ HK$ HK$
I3 BT BT BT BT
Year ended BE-_Z-IF
31 December 2014 TZAZt-HLEFE
Executive directors: BTES:
Fong Man Kelvin (Chairman) 773 (%) (b) - 918,000 15,000 933,000
Fong Nga RER (b) — 387,000 15,000 402,000
Yue Kwai Wa Ken REE © 58,065 - 1,500 59,565
Yip Chung Wai David EEE © 58,065 - 1,500 59,565
Mak Yiu Cho 3 (b) 20,500 - = 20,500
Law Fei Shing &IE, 20,500 - - 20,500

Non-executive director: ~ FHITES
De Weyer Daniel Ludovicus  Eif&1=
Joannes (d) 63,140 — — 63,140

Independent non-executive B FHTES :

directors:

Wong Sui Chi = (b) 94,600 - - 94,600

Wong Hak Kun Jerry =) (b) 94,600 - = 94,600

Frostick Stephen William  Frostick Stephen Wiliam (b) 94,600 — — 94,600

Liu Cheng Zhong SIER (b) 94,600 = = 94,600
598,670 1,305,000 33,000 1,936,670

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
WEBEBREEERERA A



DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Note:

(@) On 25 June 2015, Huang Yun was appointed as executive director
and Tso Hon Sai, Bosco, Leung Siu Hong and Chung Wai Man were
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the Group.

(b)  On 27 July 2015, Fong Man Kelvin, Fong Nga and Mak Yiu Cho
resigned as executive directors and Wong Sui Chi, Wong Hak Kun
Jerry, Frostick Stephen William and Liu Cheng Zhong resigned as
independent non-executive directors of the Group.

(c) On 4 July 2014, Yue Kwai Wa Ken and Yip Chung Wai David were
appointed as the executive directors of the Group. On 18 November
2014, Yue Kwai Wa Ken and Yip Chung Wai David resigned as
executive directors of the Group.

(d)  On 3 September 2014, De Weyer Daniel Ludovicus Joannes
resigned as independent non-executive director of the Group.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included one (2014: two) director whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments
of the remaining four (2014: three) individuals are set out

BEEHEM o)
FIEE -

@ RZE—RAFA~A-+HA =ZEZ
TERATEEREEE  ZRERER
NEZEAAEEBIIENTES -

by R-TE—HFLA=-++tH AX X
SEAREREBTNTES RERE
=757.4) * Frostick Stephen William & 2175
BEIEAEEBYIENTES -

© R-T-WELAmB FFEREE
EEEAAREENTES N =T
—mE+—A+N\R - REEREEE
B AEEITES -

@ RZFB-MOFAA=R G BECEEER
SEBTIFNITES -

REBEEZZ—RAFR-_ZT—NOF+=A
=t+—HIFE  #BEAANESEAEEH
IWEE TN & 1E ARSI INA SN AR E B
5 RN E BB AE -

(b) EEEREHAL

RAFE AERERLEZRSFAL
BE-—R(ZE-HF: MB)E
E - HEREX2Z2oMFER
Mo HERMMZ(ZT—WF : =4)

below: ALTHBESEF AT
2015 2014
—F-1F —T-mF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries, wages and allowances e - L& K2EEh 1,965,947 1,545,000
Pension obligations RIREETS 34,515 30,000
2,000,462 1,575,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & EZ —_F—AF +_A=+—HILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8.

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following band:

BEEHN =)
(b) EERBEFAL(E)
NFmTEERNZ M -

Number of individuals

AE
2015 2014
—E—-0EF —ZF U4
HKS$NIl to HK$ 1,000,000 T ITE 1,000,000 7T 4 3

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the highest paid individuals of the Group as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss

FR - AEBERSHFATHRELR
& B EE T B 2 1 B B| HIASK
MARE B 2 B DBEBA

of office. (N
9. OTHER INCOME 9. HMWA

2015 2014
—E-HF —T
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Net foreign exchange gain b 5 W) FRE - 68,012

Interest income on non-current RS AN G E B3R ED
rental deposits carried at amortised cost HEZSF BHWA 84,225 56,346
Bank interest income FRITH BHA 1,662 592
Others HAb 639,164 35,045
725,051 159,995

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
BB EEERER AR



10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BB A

11.

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEKARAITAT -
2015 2014
—EB-hfF —E-F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Finance cost on asset retirement obligations  $REE & =18 R EFREHIFLE A 186,990 180,912
Finance cost on finance lease liabilities BERESEBEIRERA - 39,033
Interest on overdue payments B RS RO FI B 306 3,844

Interest on other loan wholly repayable —FAEFEENEMERFE

within one year - 900,000
187,296 1,123,789

Less: amount capitalised as construction  J& : B AERTIEZ &%

in progress (Note 15) (FFzE15) - (675,000)
187,296 448,789
INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT) 11. 88X (Ex)
2015 2014
— —TmF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax BNEATRIE — BEAEMISH
Over-provision in prior year KRB - (8,710,909)
Current tax - PRC BNEARLIE —
Provision for the year NEEHEHE - 483,881
Deferred income tax (Note 19) EIEFTS L (F13E19) 430,064 (407,650)
430,064 (8,634,678)
The Group is not subject to taxation in the Cayman Islands and the AEERNHASHERABEZHSHEY
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). WNTHIE o
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax is required since the Group FA A AN B A 2N 68 5 (A I 48 JE ER A i 7 -
has no assessable profit for the year. The amount provided for the HURAR BB FSTEHREE - RBEZ
year ended 31 December 2014 was calculated at 16.5% based on TNFFA=+—HIEFEREE S
the assessable profit for that year. AT AL F S 2 JE iR B i 7| A B R B

16.5% T & o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE —Z—AF+_A=+—HILFE

1. INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT) (Continued) 11.

No provision for the PRC corporate income tax is required since
the Group has no assessable profit for the year. The amount
provided for the year ended 31 December 2014 was provided at
the rate of 25% for that year.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of loss before tax multiplied by tax rates applicable to
profit or loss in the respective countries is as follows:

8wy, (ER) =)

R ANEERANE R R EERTEH -
BEAL T BB RS VAR - KB
E_T-NET-_A=1t—BLFERE
&R PALF IR 25% =t et

PS5 5 52 SR BR i B IS 1R R DA A IR &
BaAB R Z RB AR T

2015 2014
—EB-hfF —E-F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss before taxation FRARATEIE (123,405,540) (60,178,163)
Tax calculated at domestic tax REBIEEZERD
rates applicable to profits or loss in BB ERAENTIE
the respective countries (24,283,372) (11,865,521)
Tax effect of expenses A HBRAZ R E
that are not deductible 15,473,494 5,046,611
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERFIBEE E’J%Rﬂ‘k? Z 7,532,042 3,742,776
Tax effect of income that is not taxable EARBIRARB S 2 - (3,999)
Tax effect of impairment of REE QB Z BB
interests in joint ventures PR - 1,121,684
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures D {E& & A &) 3EE R T g5 2 1,707,900 2,034,774
Over-provision in prior years AR S R RA B - (8,710,909)
Income tax expenses/(credit) Fris®imx (%) 430,064 (8,634,678)

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
AR EBZERER AR



12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. XFEEHEE

The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the AEERAFEZBEDENRGTA)
following: THIIEE 27 :
2015 2014
—E-0F —Z O
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Provision for impairment FEUER SR B S
of trade receivables - 4,423,101
Auditor’s remuneration ZE A & 1,200,000 1,200,000
Depreciation of property, Y% - BEREEITE
plant and equipment 4,691,183 7,255,616
Impairment on interests in joint ventures REBRRZERRE - 6,797,484
Written off of amounts due MEEERE & A RFIE
from joint ventures 2,112,528 —
Minimum lease payment under LEHERERERK
operating lease 17,057,985 17,974,662
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) PE N B (Mes) /F 58 106,855 (68,012
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEIREZEE"
plant, and equipment* 70,170 =
Written off of property, MsEMZE - B K& (FEE) -
plant and equipment (Note)* 41,509,239 5,167,969
Written off of prepaid operating leases* MEHTE R E 618,338 —
Written off of rental deposits* MEF SR s - 732,364 =
Written off of prepayments (Note)* s TE S RIE (i EE) 23,864,028 —
Written off of other receivables* it 5 5L 4t P L R I 552,484 —
Written off of trade receivables* U8R FE L BR R 7,441,883 —
Note: PR -
During the year ended 31 December 2015, construction in progress HE-_Z-—RE+T-_A=+—HLEE ©H
of HK$27,365,278 (2014: HK$4,376,500) and prepayments of RERIERE=M(ZFT—WF : @mHE)BE -
HK$20,201,025 (2014: HK$Nil) were written off as a result of the MSHTE R T 227,365,278 B L (= — U4 -
termination of developments of three hotels (2014: two hotels). 4,376,500/ 7T ) R IBI F/IH 20,201,025/ 7T (=

5 TEIT) o

*

These items are included in “Other operating expenses” of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

ZEEB YN GAERR P [ HibL
BRXIA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

13. DIVIDEND

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

14. LOSS PER SHARE
(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$123,835,604
(2014: HK$51,543,485) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 349,688,342 (2014: 253,508,144 as
restated for open offer) in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share

There was no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the
Company’s outstanding share options for the years ended
31 December 2015 and 2014. Accordingly, the diluted loss
per share is same as basic loss per share for both years.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
AR EBZERER AR

13- Hﬁ/%\
REEZE_T—AFE_ZFT—NF+=A

=+—HILFE  EEHEEZRMAER
Hﬁ/%\ ©

BREE

14.

(@

(b)

BREXEBR

RARIHEEANBLEEBRERBEN
STETIENARRER AEEARE
fEE518 123,835,604 % L ( —Z — M
F : 51,543,485/870) RRAFEE
BT AARNAE T 580 349,688,342
A% (—Z—PO4 : 253,508,144 % (5t
NHBETFUAES)) °

BEREEER

REBEE-_E—RHER-_ZT—MNF
+-A=1+—BLEE  AQEH
RITEMBREY B8 SET LR
f% o At - RREF - SREEES
BEGREREE N -



15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BMERRE

Furniture
Leasehold and Office Motor  Construction
improvements fixtures  equipments vehicles in progress Total
HENERE BRREE BAERE RE ERIR @
HKS$ HKS HKS HK$ HKS HK$
B BT B B BT B
COST: R
1 January 2014 RZE-NE
-fB—-AH 40,992,261 6,595,204 1,059,550 2701859 39916176 91,265,050
Aditions NE 21,951 29,589 307,193 = 36,091,539 36,450,272
Write off Hisa (1,445,292) - - - (4,376,500) (5,821,792)
Transfer & 13,791,230 - = - (18,791,230) =
Exchange realignment e (138,113) (23,155) (3,706) (1012) (0872 (175,858)
At31December 2014and ~ RZZT—MF
1 January 2015 TZA=+-8k
“F-n5-A-H 53,222,037 6,601,638 1,363,037 2700847 57830113 121,717,672
Additions RE 9,464,095 1,501,031 1,490,187 = = 12,455,313
Disposal in = - - - (1941,752) - (1941,752)
Written off ks (49,832,556) (2,598,064) (309,029) (754696  (27,365.278)  (80,859,623)
Exchange realignment EHAR (792,476) (176,394) (40,654) (4,399) (484,938) (1,498,861)
At 31 December 2015 R-B-1F
t-H=1+-H 12,061,100 5,328,211 2,503,541 - 20,079,807 49,872,749
ACCUMULATED ZitHE -
DEPRECIATION:
1 January 2014 “E-mE-A-A 29,147,394 6,512,350 957,032 1,307,847 = 37,924,623
Charge for the year FREHR 6,614,050 38,475 80,074 523,017 - 7,255,616
Eliminated on written off Hisa (653,823) - - - - (653,829)
Exchange realignment 5 A% (94,982) (22,933) (3.279) (391) = (121,585)
At31 December 2014 and ~ MZF—M4
1 January 2015 +ZA=+-8k
“F-n5-A-H 35,012,639 6,527,892 1,033,827 1,830,473 = 44,404,831
Charge for the year FREHR 4,423,287 52,913 108,152 106,831 - 4,691,183
Eliminated on disposal HEME - - - (1,179,749) - (1,179,749)
Eliminated on written off itz (35,919,733) (2,579,155) (96,800 (754,696) —  (39,350,384)
Exchange realignment B (561,648) (172,670) (34,605) (2,859 — (771,782)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-1%
TZA=t-H 2,954,545 3,828,980 1,010,574 - - 7,794,099
CARRYING AMOUNTS: FRE:
At 31 December 2015 R-B-1%
T=A=t1-H 9,106,555 1,499,231 1,492,967 - 20,079,807 42,078,650
At 31 December 2014 i Sitf:3
+-A=1+-H 18,200,398 73746 329,210 870374 57,830,113 77,312,841
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

During the year, the Group did not capitalise any borrowing costs
(2014: HK$675,000) (Note 10) on qualifying assets.

Leasehold improvements of HK$9,918,976 was written off due
to rental agreement of the head office in the PRC was terminated
during the year. Three operating hotels’ leasehold improvement
of HK$2,963,020 were written off due to the operating hotels
were renovated during the year. A sub-leased hotel’s leasehold
improvement of HK$857,143 was written off during the year due
to the sub-leased hotel agreement with a tenant was terminated
during the year.

Construction in progress of HK$27,365,278 (2014: HK$4,376,500)
were written off as a result of the termination of developments of
two hotels (2014: two hotels).

The Group leased a motor vehicle under non-cancellable finance
leases as at 31 December 2014 (Note 24). The lease term was
5 years. Motor vehicle included the following amounts where the
Group was a lessee under finance leases:

15. ¥ - BERRE @)

RER > AEBETERSEBREEENE
EAEFRKA(ZF — M4 : 67500078
7o) (KfEE10) -

RER - ARIEFEAREENA SR
i sHE S Y IE B F 9,918,976/ T
EFABFESPRBEMME=fE%
FEE S R EY EE S B 2,963,020
BT AFAKIEE—ZBEERNEESE
MR EAME —HLEBENEE
EH(EHH857,143/8 T ©

AR IERAEMEEE(CE—NFE: K
REE) - MEsER TI227,365,27878 7T
(ZZ—M4 : 4,376,500/ 7T) °

R-ZZE-—WOF+-_A=+—H ' ~&EIR
BRI ERE SR A — 5093 (T
24)  HHEIRSF - AEBIER/ABEAR
EREHEHRNTERIIA TSR

2014
—T—mF
HK$
B TT

Cost — capitalised finance leases

Accumulated depreciation RitinE

KA —BEMEZBMERE

1,661,051
(1,024,315)

636,736

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
AR EBZERER AR



16. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

16. i‘éﬁﬁ?\klﬁ C RERHE AR R
Ir

RECEIVABLES
2015 2014
—E-hfF —EmE
Notes HK$ HK$
B EE BT ABIT
Prepayments FERIR
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MR (@) - 24,169,069
Prepaid operating lease TG EHEE (o) 9,256,945 10,689,458
Others Hi 1,521,287 1,403,949
10,778,232 36,262,476
Deposits ®me
Rental deposits HERS 3,493,002 2,243,510
Other receivables H iR IE 18,808,762 25,570,153
Total prepayments, deposits and TERRIE - e Kk
other receivables H th FEUCGRIB 458 33,079,996 64,076,139
The amounts of prepayments, TERRIE « e RHALEU
deposits and other receivables HESEAWMT -
are analysed as follows:
Non-current portion ERENE D
Prepayments for property, M - R M ERETRM IR
plant and equipment - 24,169,069
Rental deposits HERE 3,493,002 2,243,510
Other receivables H b el FIE (© 2,000,000 =
Prepaid operating lease T EHE 8,406,356 9,823,653
13,899,358 36,236,232
Current portion REE D
Prepayments TEfSFRIA 1,521,287 1,403,949
Prepaid operating lease R EHE 850,589 865,805
Other receivables H b IR IR (© 16,808,762 25,570,153
19,180,638 27,839,907
33,079,996 64,076,139
Notes: BIRE -
(@)  These represented payments for construction costs for budget @  BREFEIR SRR ERAENER
hotels planned to be opened in the future. RAZASHIFRIA ©
()  The balance primarily represented the non-current portion of the b) ZEHREZEERRBBENEENERS
operating lease payment paid to an independent third party in (BBEzE=—Z= = A=t+HL+H
respect of the rental of a hotel premise in the PRC for a lease term of F)RM—BBLE= AR ANEERER
15 years till 30 June 2026. K IEBNHAER S ©
(©)  The balances included refund of prepayments for property, plant ) ZEEMRBERR_Z—UFRILRAE

and equipment of HK$18,700,000 (2014: HK$25,700,000) due to
termination of developments of two hotels in 2014.

MEBERYE - BE &REBEMNKE
P15 2 3R 518,700,000 T ( = — M
£ 1 25,700,000/ 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

17. REE QR =

2015 2014
—B-HF —F-mEF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Unlisted investments in Hong Kong:
Share of net assets
Goodwiill

REBHIFLHRE :
DMEEEFE
B

6,831,600
6,797,484

Impairment losses

AR

13,629,084
(6,797,484)

- 6,831,600

Notes:

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

The cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures includes
shareholder’s loans of HK$32,254,689 (2014: HK$32,254,689) to
joint ventures for establishment of two hotels in the PRC. The Group
will not demand for the repayment of the shareholder’s loans, and
accordingly, these loans are treated as capital injection by the Group
into joint ventures. These loans are denominated in HK$, unsecured

and non-interest bearing.

Details of the Group’s joint ventures at 31 December 2015 are as

PYEE

@ REEARIZIELMEEXRNBERR
AR B RR S MR SR X T4 & A R AR
B E 7082,254,689/8 L ( = ZF — PO 4F :
32,254,689 7T) - ASBEEERKEE
ZRRER  AtZEEREEALE
EHEERARIZEE - ZEERUUBTT
FHE - BEEENREE o

) RZT—AF+-A=+—8  Kx5EH

follows: REBERARIMFHEET :
Place of Percentage of

Name incorporation Issued share capital ownership interest Principal activities

=L SRR 3L it B BBITRA BEAERBDL FEEH

Sanya Welcomeinn Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 60% Investment
Waterfront Tourism holding and
Limited (“Waterfront”) hotel operation

“RHRERKFRE BB 2B T E AR BB PG 25
BRAR ([KE])

Sanya Welcomeinn Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 60% Investment
Jinhua Tourism holding and
Limited (“Jinhua”) hotel operation

R RERBERE BB 2B T E AR BB PG 25
BRAF([87EE )

The following tables show information of Waterfront and Jinhua.
These joint ventures are accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method. The summarised financial
information presented is based on the HKFRS financial statements

of the joint ventures.

WEEREEZRBRAT

© TRBIVKFRBENEFR - LHEE
REVERAERENER & IR p 5
iR UBEMBER N ERNERYBERE
RS ERNRNIBREZT ©



17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 17. REERR 2= (8

Summarised statement of financial position B AR R A E
Waterfront Jinhua
kE i
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-5f —E-mF “E-1f —E-mF
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 31 December: R+=A=1+—H:
Non-current assets FRBEE - 12,675,454 - 10,230,188
Current assets MEEE 1,142,781 1,057,258 936,207 998,299
Current liabilities mEaRE (8,460,483) (7,818,712) (6,697,576) (5,756,487)
Net (iabilities)/assets (BR)/EEFE (7,317,702) 5,914,000 (5,761,279) 5,472,000
Group’s share of net assets AEEELEETE - 3,548,400 - 3,283,200
Goodwil HE - 3,917,072 - 2,880,412
- 7,465,472 - 6,163,612
Impairment losses REBE - (3,917,072) - (2,880,412)
Carrying amount of interests EnRAE - 3,548,400 - 3,283,200
Share of results of joint ventures AMERBAREE (3,548,400) (4,938,388) (3,283,200) (7,393,563)

Cash and cash equivalents included EEIEERHE S
in current assets EReEEY 238,161 269,915 158,906 69,969

Current financial liabilities (excluding  iEh& EHEREI S At

trade and other payables and BE(TRERNERER

provisions) included in REAMETTIEAREE)

current liabilities - = - =
Non-current financial liabilties ERBAETRERD

(excluding trade and other SREE(TRERIER

payables and provisions) R E A (TR A R B8

included in non-current liabilities - = - -

Annual Report 2015 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

17. AEERQRIZ R ()

Summarised statement of profit or loss and other BRRREMZEHKRARYE
comprehensive income
Waterfront Jinhua
kE i
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-1fF —TF —E-RfF —T-pmF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT o BT BT
Year ended 31 December: HEt+-A=t-HIEE:
Revenue WA 6,747,467 7,138,448 3,346,982 1,928,746
Depreciation and amortisation WENEHE (2,908,506) (3,046,443 (2,768,584) (1,940,840)
Impairment of property, plant ME - BELRERE
and equipment (9,656,923) (3,897,886) (8,394,505) (5,997,991)
Interest income FlEHA 353 748 337 -
Interest expense FIERX - - - =
Income tax expense FIEiAY - = - =
Loss from continuing operations B S £HEE (13,542,219) (8,230,646) (11,496,124) (12,322,606)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) £ 2EUWA,/ (E5i8) 310,517 15,353 262,845 (5,003)
Total comprehensive loss RAEESSE (13,231,702 (8,215,293) (11,233,279) (12,327,609)
Dividends received from joint REBERFAMENZ RS

ventures

The Group has not recognised loss for the year and accumulated
losses for Waterfront and Jinhua amounting to HK$4,576,931
(2014: nil) and HK$3,614,475 (2014 nil) respectively.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

WEEREEZRBRAT

AEBWEFKEKIBERRFANEIE R
Z:HEER D RIA 4,576,931 8T (ZZF—
& 4E) 38,614,475 L (- —MN4F :
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18. OTHER ASSET 18. HthEE
2015 2014
—F-1F —TmF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At cost RN 1,440,000 =

19.

The amount represents an investment in production of a TV drama
series.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has signed
an agreement with an independent third party at a total contract
amount of HK$2,880,000 (representing a 20% interest in the
right on the TV drama series). The copyright and ancillary income
expected to be generated from this TV drama series would, after
deducting the relevant expenses, be allocated to the Group by the
interest of such investment.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS

The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised by the
Group.

19.

ZERRHREHEREEBNKRE

RBEE_ZE—RF+_A=1+—BLHF
B AREBRH-BBIE=F%F—H
Wi AHREF A 2,880,000 7T (RAE
FAEREEE RN PR H20%Ez) o /£
HBRAEEER% AR EREERTEE
HIRRAEFNE U A M IR 5% I E 2 R A L 1
PERETAEHR -

EELEFTSHERE
TXATEBRROEBECHALE -

Decelerated
tax
depreciation Provisions Total
ERRENE B k]
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT PBIT BT
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—MFE—-H—H 167,135 1,117,438 1,284,573
Credited to profit or loss for the year FERNET AR (FEE11)

(Note 11) 46,846 360,804 407,650
Exchange differences fEN =58 (380) (3,459) (3,839)
At 31 December 2014 and RZBE-—META=+—HEK

1 January 2015 RZZE—HF—A—H 213,601 1,474,783 1,688,384
Debited to profit or loss for the year FANMEER (HFE11)

(Note 11) (10,219) (419,845) (430,064)
Exchange differences b X ZRE (7,033) (65,150) (72,183)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-—RFE+=-A=+—H 196,349 989,788 1,186,137
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z - &

19.

20.

—HE+ZA=T-HALFE

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. As of 31 December
2015, the Group does not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$11,816,632 (2014: HK$4,749,202) in respect of losses
amounting to HK$52,259,975 (2014: HK$22,638,143) that can be
carried forward against taxable income. Included in unrecognised
tax losses are losses of HK$37,573,367 (2014: HK$11,928,331)
that will expire in 2020. Other tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of
subsidiaries and joint ventures for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised is HK$362,732 (2014: HK$761,775).
No liability has been recognised in respect of these differences
because the Group is in a position to control the timing of
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that such
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The majority of the Group’s revenue from hotel operations are
made via credit cards or cash. Hotel rooms are rented to corporate
customers with an appropriate credit history on credit terms of 30
days. For hotel consultancy services, the Group offers credit terms
to external customers of 60 days upon acceptance of services by
the customers. As at 31 December 2014, the Group has made
provision for impairment of trade receivables of HK$4,423,101.
Trade receivables of HK$19,624 (2014: HK$7,561,592) were
past due but not impaired. Management considered that no
recoverability problem on these trade balances as a result of
subsequent settlement received up to the date of this report and
the agreement of the revised repayment schedule with certain
trade debtors.

20.

ELEMBHEE @)

fin1 75 B B 75 F1) 25 AT BE 38 3B 4K 8 R SR FE AR B
,my'mm Bl phATAE s 2 BB B 1B e
RELEMEHEE - BE-_T—HF+=
H_+ B - ANEENER A e E IR
SHIERTUW A 2 E518 52,259,975 L (=

T — P04 : 22,638,14378 7T ) FE R IR I B
B EE11,816,632/8 1 ( ZZ — 04 :

4,749,202 %7T) - RERHIBBEBRES
R-ZE-_FFF|H 237,573,367 BT (=
T — P04 : 11,928,331/870) 2 Ei8 - &
o F T8 &5 18 ] PR HAfA) B 12 45

RBERR - BRERMBARIKREERR]
RO MEREF AR ERELER BB B TR
=R EEE A362, 7328 L ( — T — 4 ¢
761,77587T) o RS B A LAY I E
ﬁ%ﬁ%@%hﬁ BZEERA] R iR

FEE - IR LA ERERE

%
FE U BR 7R

AEEMBEEEBE RSB EHAFR
RekE - AEBAKECBEEERE
NE¥ERPRE=TRNBEEEAEE

EEH -RBEEBREMS - A%E
PINBEFESREZAZERFIRE
ANTEANEEH R_Z—HNFE+_A8
=+—A  AEEDFELEKERERURE R
1% 4,423,101 37T - FEUBR X 19,624 87T
(ZZ 4 : 7,561,592/ 7T) © @ H1E
WERE - EEERE  AREEARE
HEAEWE R AEEIE - WEEERFH
ETREWE PR CISFTEFGTEER
Wik MZEE S EHNKREIERE -

2015 2014

— —E

HK$ HKS$

BT BT

Trade receivables JEYBRE TR 262,600 12,798,345
Impairment A - (5,056,412)
262,600 7,741,933

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

21.

The aging analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

20. EWRERFR (&)

A ERUPRRZ R DA T

2015 2014

—EB-afF —E-F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Neither past due nor impaired e ERE 242,976 180,341
0-30 days past due BHI0OE 30K - 505,878
31-60 days past due #HIZ1 260K 11,240 226,905
61-90 days past due #HI61 20K 1,176 212,248
91-120 days past due mHEIO1 =120k 568 554,225
121 - 365 days past due ®wHI121 £365:K 6,640 2,415,042
Over 365 days past due # HARR 3 365 K - 3,647,294
19,624 7,561,592

262,600 7,741,933

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables

during the year are as follows:

AFERERYICRFRERBEFMT

2015 2014

S —T-mF

HK$ HKS$

BT BIT

At 1 January R—A—H 5,056,412 634,115

Exchange realignment b X T (77,991) (804)

Provision for the year NEFE RS - 4,423,101

Amounts written off HMsHeRE (4,978,421) =

At 31 December Wn+=—A=+—H - 5,056,412
AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT VENTURES 21. BEIREE A TFRIE

Amounts due from joint ventures are interest-free, unsecured and JEREERRIFIEARE  BEBKIEZE

repayable on demand.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 & EZ —_F—AF +_A=+—HILFE

22. PROVISION FOR ASSET RETIREMENT 22 BBEEEREE
Under the terms of the tenancy agreements signed with landlords, BIEEETRITOHERRGER A5
the Group shall vacate and re-instate the leased hotel premises at AREERE R SRS (A2 +E) (=2
the Group’s cost upon expiry of the relevant tenancy agreements —OE: NE+E) @mERAEFRLEE
in 5 to 10 years (2014: 8 to 10 years). Provision is therefore made WEE R ERAEREYRE - FIkE Y“yaHs
for the best estimate of the expected reinstatement costs to be BE A E R KA DA B BE 3T By [ 5 1T B
incurred. Movements of provision for asset retirement are as o REBEERBENEHMT
follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—mEF
HK$ HKS
BT BT
At 1 January n—H—H 3,907,830 3,739,945
Finance cost on asset retirement obligations  #REE & EE R ER A RLE KA
(Note 10) (MF7E10) 186,990 180,912
Exchange differences PEH =58 (135,663) (13,027)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 3,959,157 3,907,830
Less: non-current portion & FERNERELH (3,959,157) (1,485,747)
Current portion BNHAER 2 - 2,422,083
23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. EATERFN R HABET RRIE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-mF
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Trade payables FEATBR IR 2,124,015 4,311,517
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B R E A FERT IR 10,842,324 17,385,161
12,966,339 21,696,678
The aging analysis of trade payables is as follows: JERTERREVBRES DAT AT -
2015 2014
—E-RF —E—mE
HK$ HKS
BT BT
0-30 days 0ZE30XK 729,766 1,695,674
31-60 days 31 260K 379,780 1,336,146
61-90 days 61 290K 266,170 679,726
Over 90 days A 90 X 748,299 699,971
2,124,015 4,311,517

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Accruals and other payables are analysed as follows:

24,

23. FERRAR R LA B =E ()
R IR B R E A A BB 0 5 AT R

T
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—MmF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Accruals FESTIEE

Accrued staff costs fEEFB TR 695,993 2,609,497
Accrued audit and professional fee JErtEZ N EEER 1,266,000 2,866,155
Accrued effective rental payable Bt ERAES ENZUE 3,989,898 6,080,987
5,951,891 11,556,639

Other payables Hih R FR1E
Other tax payables E b S REIE 3,321,738 3,741,755
Payables to hotel constructors JERHEEE T A BRUE 757,020 783,520
Receipt in advance TEUWGRIE 194,760 195,113
Others HAtb 616,915 1,108,134
4,890,433 5,828,522
Total accruals and other payables FEETIE B I Eofth e SRIB 42 58 10,842,324 17,385,161

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

Minimum lease payments

24. ERMEHEERE

Present value of minimum
lease payments

REREN RERENRRE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-EF —E-mF —Z-%F —E-QmF
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Within one year —FR - 441,402 - 419,560
In the second to fifth years, inclusve  —ZE R & (AEEREME) - 157,455 - 155,583
- 598,857 - 575,143
Less: Future finance charges w BRMBER - (23,714) - =
Present value of lease obligations ~ HE & EH(E - 575,143 - 575,143
Less: Amount due for seftlement 3 : 128 A REN FIE
within 12 months (RRBEESIR)
(shown under current liabilities) - (419,560)
Amount due for settlement after 1218 A & R RFUR
12 months - 155,583
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

24. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (Continued)

25.

The lease term was 5 years in 2014. The average effective
borrowing rate was 5% for 2014. Interest rates are fixed at
the contract dates and thus expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and
no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental
payments. At the end of each lease term, the Group has the option

24, EmEHEERE®)

R-ZF-—NOFHEHRARF - —T—HF
FHEREENEFE% o MEIITRETH
HHET - AL AREAZ A FEREER
% - FTEHEETIEE
SR AR - REAEHR - &
SEARNARERBEETE -

= tL

=K

to purchase the motor vehicle at nominal prices.

All finance lease payables are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group’s finance lease payables are secured by the lessor’s title

to the leased assets.

I kAT

PrARNREREFIRTIAETTRHE

AEENEMNBERERRTALBEAS

HEEEMREE R -

SHARE CAPITAL 25. [RZA
Number of
Shares Amount
BRHEE -
Note HK$
PEE STT
Authorised: VERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 FRE(E0.01 87T
(2014: HK$0.01) each (ZZ—W4%F : 0.0187) NT@E
At 1 January 2014, RZE—WOF—A—8H -
31 December 2014, R-ZE—NFE+=-_A=+—8
1 January 2015 and R-ZZE—hF—H—BK
31 December 2015 —E-RFt+=-A=+—H 780,000,000 7,800,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 SHEEO0.01 87T
(2014: HK$0.01) each (ZZ—P04F : 0.0187T) NEEK
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—MF—F—H 216,500,001 2,165,001
Exercise of share options 1TiE A A e 1,770,000 17,700
Issue of shares upon placing BREE TR @) 43,500,000 435,000
At 31 December 2014 and RZE—MFE+_A=+—HBK
1 January 2015 R-ZE—AFE—F—H 261,770,001 2,617,701
Exercise of share options 1T R AR 750,000 7,500
Issue of shares upon placing Bl &7 (b) 52,300,000 523,000
Issue of shares upon open offer AF33E &1 TRL (D © 78,704,999 787,049
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—AF+=-A=+—H 393,525,000 3,935,250

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@) On 23 July 2014, the Company and Emperor Securities Limited
entered into a placing agreement in respect of the placement of
43,500,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to independent
investors at a price of HK$0.79 per share. The placement was
completed on 12 August 2014 and the premium on the issue of
shares amounting to HK$33,034,875, net of transaction cost was
credited to the Company’s share premium account.

(b)  On 22 December 2014, the Company and Emperor Securities
Limited entered into a placing agreement in respect of the placement
of 52,300,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to independent
investors at a price of HK$0.66 per share. The placement was
completed on 9 January 2015 and Net proceeds from such issue
amounted to HK$33,930,215, out of which HK$523,000 and
HK$33,407,215 were recorded in share capital and share premium,
respectively.

() On 16 October 2015, the Company issued and allotted 78,704,999
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at an issue price of HK$0.8 per
ordinary share on the basis of one offer share for every four shares
held on 21 September 2015, the record date of the open offer. Net
proceeds from such issue amounted to HK$62,503,145, out of
which HK$787,049 and HK$61,716,096 were recorded in share
capital and share premium, respectively.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise
the return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment of
dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted
capital. Net debt is calculated as total debts less cash and cash
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity
(i.e. share capital, share premium, non-controlling interests,
retained profits and other reserves) and includes some forms of
subordinated debts.

25. kA& (&)

G

—E-—ME+A=-+=H ' XAF
REFH(FB)BRARME L
WEEZNFRO7TIE TN EKREE
43,500,000l Z R EE0.01 B TH L&
PRETY —HEEEHE - BER =T —I
ENA+—BEK " BITRHHEE
33,034,875 7T (1B R B AR ) sE AR
A RIRIRRD R ERR o

@ m»
iz

) RZTE—WOFEF+-_A=-+=H &2
RIEREFA(FB) AR QA MAE
B ENERR0.66/8 THEREE
52,300,000 & & AL (E 0.01 7 T HY L if
BT —EHRERE - BEN=ZT—H
F—ANBEK  BEITRHHETERE
JF %8 /333,930,21578 7T H F1523,000
7 7T % 33,407,215 3 7T T 4 Bl st AR AR
KRR mME o

© RZZ—AF+A+/NA KAREZRRN
—E—RAFAA-t+—H(AA%EZ
ExEH) B A AR AR () BB — IR
BERPDZEEUNGREBR0SHE T
2 EBITEETT R AL E% 78,704,999 A% & A%
HEEC.01 BTz L@ - BB MEITA
5 3N T8 B 58 562,503,145 7T 0 A P
787,049 7T} 61,716,096 78 7T % Al 5+
PN ZNNE it )

AEBEAREEN B ERRERNEE L E
BEE YRBBLENBBLLRE TR
REAER

AEERLEPIRERRERNESRE - ARE
ERHEARGERE  WHEEEENR RN
BERBRSHENB(CMBRE - BTHERN
ABENER  AEEAEEHABRREX
- BITHA - DB - BAE -
BRRE EH L EEENRMDET °

AEEREABEEFEREA L RKEE
BR - ZUERBABEFERAFRELE
K- BEFEDEEBEERERAT R
RBeEEYAE - ARREAH2EEE
(BIRCA ~ BDia (B - JRiER i ~ BT
a A N B ) K - W BREREA
HR AR NER
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

25.

26.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 25. B (&)
During 2015, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from RZZ—hF AEENRKE_ZF Y
2014, was to maintain the gearing ratio of less than 20%. The FHE - B EEB B ERFL20%
gearing ratios at 31 December 2015 and 2014 were as follows: AR e REE—RAERZT—WMFEF=A
=t+—AMEEABHLERNT :
2015 2014
—F-1F —TmF
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Total debt EEERE - 575,143
Less: cash and cash equivalents B BERIReEEY (47,612,022) (2,322,143)
Net cash B4R (47,612,022) (1,747,000)
Total equity s 107,367,690 134,174,716
Adjusted capital TG BN 59,755,668 132,427,716
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BEMEAEFERL X N/ATREA N/A “NE
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 26. AR BER 2K

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include employee
and business associate of the Group. The Scheme became
effective on 22 June 2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of shares
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
AR EBZERER AR

AARRTEE—IABBRE S ([ &
21 UMEAEEEBRIELERZ
BERSEFRMNE N ER - Z5TEE
BER2EREBAREB T REBRHY -
ZET BN —T——FRNAZ T ZBER
BEREEBUES N - BB ERBFE10
FABMY

B AR A B AR 1 2 RETTERIER
BESHE - RITER - BERAXFR
TARKEREETRDZ230% BREE
KRBT El 2 ATRAMER -+ (& A B
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than ten years from the date of the offer of the
share options or the expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
Directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
offer of the share options; and (i) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:

26. LR AER 2R #E)

BREERETALARES - FETHRAE
NEERRABEEHEA - AELLRTL
FEMATERIE - BHN - AR HEEARE
FARBEERE AR BVBLIERNITE
e REHBA - MM+ @A BER
EAREZ R AR R BT 0.1% k%
AARROAF L BB EAERR
5,000,000/ 7T * HEERBREASER
AL -

BRHBERE 2O RENRE28HR
2 RRANBBNA K 1ETZEEL
RIE - REWBEREZITERRBESR
E o R—BEBREHRG YR TERE
BREZHEE+FRZAE 2FHA (A
RPEERE) L

W R EERT - HTEER()
15 4 0 R B 537 25 ) R 7B S
B R)BEBHRMAEERSAAA
ARG ER AR EGABEES
) -

BREREY N TRHBEAZABREINBR
RE LRRZHERN -

HRBIBEREZFIRIT

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Expiry date Exercise price
A BES TR JE% B HA TEE
HK$
TT
8 October 2013 No vesting period 8 October 2013 to 7 October 2015 1.822
7 October 2015
“T—=F+ANRA EBBH —E—=F —E-hF+ALEH 1.822
+ANRE
—E—RF
+A+EAR

Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.

HEBBAARE A RABEIE -
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

26. IR AER 2R &)

Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as FARKERBREFFERAT -
follows:
2015 2014
“B-0F —ZmE
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of share exercise  Number of share exercise
options price options price
BREHE G B EE B Jill: R
T8 1R
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Outstanding at the beginning EMARTHE
of the year 6,450,000 1.822 8,400,000 1.769
Exercised during the year FRBTE (750,000) 1.822 (1,770,000) 1.622
Expired during the year FREBE (5,700,000) 1.822 (180,000) 1.330
Outstanding at the end of the year KT - 1.822 6,450,000 1.822
Exercisable at the end of the year G4 AJ7T{E - - 6,450,000 1.822
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share FR - RITE A BB ARER N ARE
options exercised during the year was HK$2.16 (2014: HK$2.265). 2168 (ZF — 4 : 2.26587T) ©
The options outstanding at the year ended 31 December 2014 BHE-_ZT—NF+HA=1+T—HIEFE
had weighted average remaining contractual life of 1 year and the RITEREARAE R INE T TR E LB A
exercise prices were HK$1.822. In 2015 and 2014, no options FIFEER1822F L - RZE—HF
were granted. RZZT—F - WHEK L ERE -

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

27. QB R T

THE COMPANY
2015 2014
—F-1F —TmF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZIRE 60,474,217 104,808,579
Current assets REEE
Rental deposits HERe 1,794,895 =
Prepayments TESRIE 1,484,696 —
Cash and cash equivalents HEeERREEEY 40,536,769 —
43,816,360 =
Current liabilities REEE
Due to subsidiaries AR ENGIE €] 636,932 636,900
Accruals JEFTE A 1,266,000 3,060,368
1,902,932 3,697,268
Net current assets/(liabilities) BRBEE(BRF) 41,913,428 (3,697,268)
Net assets EEFE 102,387,645 101,111,311
EQUITY i
Share capital i &N 3,935,250 2,617,701
Reserves (] 98,452,395 98,493,610
Total equity AR 102,387,645 101,111,311
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

28. RESERVES

(@) Group

28. f##

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(b) Company

(@ x&£H

AEBEEBNSBREDINEA
828 R R EMRAR ARG A E
SEBERPIIR -

(b) ARF

Share-based

Share payment Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
R AERE
R RE R E RitER ot )
(Note (c)(i)) (Note (c)(iv)
(FzE (e)) (HzE (c)(iv)
HKS HK$ HKS HKS
BT oum BT BT
At 1 January 2014 R-E—-mF—H—H 71,493,994 2,935,250 (8,877,978) 65,551,266
Loss for the year FNER - - (2,945,531) (2,945,531)
Exercise of share options (B 877 8B
by employees 3,411,775 (558,775) - 2,853,000
Issue of shares on placement B2 &2 17k (7 33,930,000 - - 33,930,000
Transaction costs attributable A& E(G3 S5 A
to placement (895,125) — - (895,125)
At 31 December 2014and  M=Z—NF+-A=+—HEK
1 January 2015 ~“Z-H%—H—H 107,940,644 2,376,475 (11,823,509) 98,493,610
Loss for the year FRBE - - (96,523,526) (96,523,526)
Exercise of share options B 8171 EEAIE
by employees 1,630,125 (271,125) - 1,359,000
Issue of shares on placement B & 31T {7 33,995,000 - - 33,995,000
Issue of shares on open offer AR EEITHA 62,176,948 - - 62,176,948
Transaction costs attributable L& (G H A
to placement (587,785) - - (587,785)
Transaction costs attributable ‘AFIE & E(E R 5 M
to open offer (460,852) - - (460,852)
Lapse of share options SRR - (2,105,350) 2,105,350 -
At 31 December 2015 R_ZE—RF+_A=1+—H 204,694,080 - (106,241,685) 98,452,395

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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28. RESERVES (continued)

()

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in note 3 to the financial statements.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable,
is appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws
and regulations in the PRC.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for equity-settled sharebased payments in
note 26 to the financial statements.

Other reserve

The other reserves represent the difference between
the nominal value of the issued capital of Legend
Strategy Limited, Lai Ying International Limited
and Triple Leaf Limited, the then shareholders of
Legend Strategy Limited and the nominal value of
the 135,000,001 shares issued and allotted to the
shareholders of the above companies by the Company.

28. f#fE &)

(c)

RENEEREN
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(i)

(i)
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ER—REHBES I HNE
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FX o Bk fet i T AR I B 75 o 2 PR
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R BRI RIS M 58
B o

KR BB

VAR D B 2 (R R fE AR
SEFREE R 2 RITERK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 & EZ —_F—AF +_A=+—HILFE

29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 29.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2014: Nil).

30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30.

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

HREE

R-ZE-—RAF+_A=+—H  x&EL
BEAEASARE (T —HEF &) -

EARESE

REERRERAROEASALZNT

2015 2014
—EB-afF —E-F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Contracted but not provided for EEESIEESELE

— Property, plant and equipment — WE - B k&G - 2,954,960
— Other asset — HEmEE 1,440,000 =
1,440,000 2,954,960

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 31. K&EHEFRE

The Group leases various hotel premises under non-cancellable
operating lease agreements. The lease terms of the tenancy
agreements are set out in Note 22. The leases have escalation
clauses and renewal rights. The total future minimum lease

REE R BEEE M E AT A HEEg &
EmEAE - BEWHEEREIINHE
22 HEAKXANE BB ME KR REE
& o NRAIRGHEEHEN R ENRER

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as ENEBRENT
follows:
2015 2014
—E-1EF —E—O4F
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Within one year —FR 18,664,303 11,370,376
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EFRF (BREEEMSE) 46,141,030 42,523,234
After five years AFE 11,276,410 54,526,630
76,081,743 108,420,240

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
AR EBZERER AR



32. FUTURE OPERATING LEASE 32. AREEHEZH
ARRANGEMENTS

R-ZF-—AF+-_A=+—8 xEEAR
TRIHHE LM ER N2 KRR @ REM

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases as

follows: WAL -
2015 2014
—F-1F —TmF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Within one year —FR - 2,527,486
In the second to fifth years inclusive TERF (BEEERE) - 10,109,945
After five years hFE - 4,423,101
- 17,060,532

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. BELIRS

(@) In addition to those related party transactions and balances @ BYBmEREMATHEENBES
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group R G REEHRIN - REBBRFERNAF A

had the following transactions with its related parties during TEEARS :
the year.
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—mEF
HK$ HK$
BT PEIT
Management fee income ERBA
—Waterfront — K - 592,846
— Jinhua — $REE - 855,775
- 1,448,621
()  Key management compensation b) FEEBAEMHE
2015 2014
—E-h8%F —E—mE
HK$ HK$
BT P IT
Salaries, wages and allowances e TER2EL 3,339,153 3,553,670
Pension obligations RIKEE 88,781 114,111
3,427,934 3,667,781
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEZ T —AF+_A=+—HILFE

any

N

34. LITIGATIONS 34.

On 8 January 2016 the Company received a writ of summons
endorsed with a statement of claim (the “Statement of Claim”)
dated 8 January 2016 (the “Writ”) issued by Fu Tat Credit Limited
(the “Plaintiff”) as plaintiff in the High Court of the Court of First
Instance of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, with
Mr. Fong Man Kelvin (“Mr. Fong”) named as the 1st defendant
and the Company as the 2nd defendant (subsequently becoming
the fifth defendant pursuant to an amended Writ of Summons), in
respect of an alleged loan arrangement made between the Plaintiff,
Mr. Fong and the Company on 6 October 2014. At the relevant
time, Mr. Fong was the controlling shareholder (as defined in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”)), the chairman and executive director of the
Company. Mr. Fong disposed of all his interest in the Company on
or about 29 May 2015 and resigned as the chairman, executive
director, authorised representative and compliance officer of the
Company on 27 July 2015. Mr. Fong, however, has remained as a
director of two joint ventures of the Company.

It was stated in the Statement of Claim that the Plaintiff, as a
licensed money lender under the Money Lenders Ordinance
(Chapter 163 of the laws of Hong Kong), had entered into a loan
agreement with Mr. Fong as the borrower and the Company
as the guarantor on 6 October 2014 in respect of a sum of
HK$3,500,000 (the “Loan”). Under the Statement of Claim, the
Plaintiff claims against Mr. Fong and the Company for: (1) a sum of
HK$2,092,871.02; (2) further interest accrued on the outstanding
loan principal of HK$1,961,932.21 at the rate of 42% per annum
from 6 January 2016 until payment in full; (3) further or other relief;
and (4) costs of the proceedings on full indemnity basis.

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 12 January
2016, the Company denies and disputes the allegations made
by the Plaintiff against the Company in the Statement of Claim.
The Company has never authorised the provision of the alleged
guarantee to the Plaintiff or anyone over the Loan nor has the
Company ever passed any resolution to authorise the provision
of the alleged guarantee over the Loan allegedly advanced by the
Plaintiff to Mr. Fong.

In respect of the above mentioned lawsuit, the Group has engaged
external legal advisor for further legal procedures. The case is in
litigation procedure currently. The management will continue to
monitor the event and will make further announcements at due
time to provide latest updates on the litigation to investors of the
Group.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
BB EBIZERER AR
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35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

36.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are as

35. RITBARZRE

R-ZE—AF+_A=+—H WBAA

follows: ZEERIT
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of
registration Issued and paid ownership
Company name and operation up capital interest Principal activities
SRR/ ER1TR 5 AR
AREH SRREE LS EMEEA ARl EEH
Legend Strategy International Limited The BVI 4 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100% (dlirect) Investment holding
EEERER A EBENES BR1ETNARERR (B#) REER
Legend Strategy Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 ordinary shares 100% (indirect) Investment holding
and provision of hotel
consultancy services
WERRAT BE 10,000,000/ L & Bk (Fix) REERR
REEE B R RS
Welcome Inn Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share 100% (indirect) Provision of hotel
management services
HREREEEBERAR BE BT B MR (F) REVBIEE R RS
Legend Strategy Management Limited The BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% (indirect)  Rental of hotel premise
RBRUES Bik1Za 1 RERK (FHx) BENEEE
Shenzhen Yuelai Inn Tourists Co., Ltd. The PRC* HK$8,000,000 100% (indirect) Hotel operations
AR ERREE AR A R 8,000,000 7T (fHx) BEEE
Shenzhen Yingde Tourists Co., Ltd. The PRC* HK$8,000,000 100% (indirect) Hotel operations
il )i YN - 8,000,000 7T (%) BIEEE
Shenzhen Modern Tourists Co., Ltd. The PRC* HK$1,000,000 100% (indirect) Hotel operations and
provision of hotel
consultancy services
A EEREEBERAA e 1,000,000/ 7T (FH%) BESE
RAEEEER RS
Shenzhen Yuelai Inn Co., Ltd. The PRC* HK$5,000,000 100% (indirect) Hotel operations
A RERER R I 5,000,000 7T (%) BIEEE
Grand China Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share 100% (indirect) General trading
and investment
BB TR BRI (FH%) —REHRRE
Net Media Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 ordinary shares 100% (indirect) Drama production
BlEEEEEERAR BE 20,000,000 L ik (Fi) BHREISHE
* Wholly owned Foreign Enterprise * SNEBE R

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which

principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue

by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2016.

ERBIHAKEEE BEXRBES

Y EHHBAAE -

36. HLEMBE®*K
WEHBEBREEEERN T —AF=A

T\ BHEfE R
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Five-Year Financial Summary

L FEMEHE

A summary of results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group forthe ~ASEBT AEVBEENEEUNREERE
last five financial years is as follows: BHOMEZWT :

RESULTS E 35

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

“B-RF —ET-NF —T-=F —F-—F —ZT——F

HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$

BT BT BT BT BT

Revenue e 19,884,379 29,700,841 57,968,906 91,155,199 69,592,354

(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT (B51E) s R (123,405,540)  (60,178,163)  (3,293,434) 43,726,938 28,852,033

Income tax (expense)/credit s (X)) % (430,064) 8,634,678  (3,960,343)  (10,855,270)  (7,587,350)

(Loss)/profit for the year FR(BR) 5H (123,835,604)  (51,543,485)  (7,253,777) 32,871,668 21,264,683
Attributable to: BAT AL e :

Owners of the Company A/NCIEZZE DN (123,835,604)  (51,543,485)  (7,253,177) 32,871,668 21,264,683

Non-controling interests FlEay i £ - - - - -

(123,835,604)  (51,543,485) (7,253,777) 32,871,668 21,264,683

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING ¥E - 8ERFEHIMHER
INTERESTS

As at 31 December

W+=—HA=+—H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-RF E-mF E-=f E-=-F %
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT BT BT
Total assets BERBH 125,659,405 162,087,990 185,630,140 176,160,788 107,146,344
Total liabilities BEBRE (18,291,715)  (27,913,274)  (35,160,151)  (57,095,783)  (21,604,930)

Non-controlling interests JEE I R - - - - -

107,367,690 134,174,716 119,065,005 85,641,414 15,285,116

The summary above does not form part of the audited financial ~ EHMUREN MEREEZMBHRKR 2 —&D °
statements.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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